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THE ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON

MISSION STATEMENT

To promote the worldwide conservation of animal species and their
habitats by stimulating public awareness and concern through the
presentation of living collections, by relevant research and by direct action
in the field.

MISSION AIMS

1.

-

.

-

- 5

To foster public awareness of the variety and diversity of the living
world through imaginative exhibits featuring live animals in
appropriate environments.

To maintain and breed species with a high conservation and
education value and to link this to a comprehensive programme ol
learning for all age groups. but particularly for children of school age.

To increase our understanding of the biology of rare animal
species, concentrating on veterinary research, reproduction, genetics,

ethology and ecology.

To initiate and run practical conservation programmes chosen in
accordance with accepted international criteria for effective and high
priority conservation.

To promote the understanding of conservation issues and their
relationship to the development of the world’s poorest countries and
to promote the application ol sound scientific principles to wildlile
management.

To ensure that the highest standards of husbandry and wellare are
employed wherever we care for animals and that technigques to
improve further the husbandry of these species are studied and
L'I;'I[]'I[I'ILJ['Iiﬂ,_'Jﬂ"."d [ L'I[hL'r"*i.

To co-operate with other responsible societies and organisations
promoting conservation on a worldwide basis,

To disseminate new knowledge in Zoology and field conservation
through publications, symposia, scientific meetings and maintenance
of the library.

To make awards of prizes and medals for distinguished work in
Zoology and Conservation.
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REPORT OF THE COUNCIL \NNUAL REFORT

The Council has pleasure in presenting its 163rd Annual Report to the
Annual General Meeting ol the Society to be held on 30th September 1992
at 3.00 pm in the Society's Meeting Room at Regent's Park.
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MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT ANNUAL REPORT
FIELD MARSHAL SIR JOHN CHAPPLE

In introducing the Annual Report for 1991/92, [ do not wish to dwell on the difficulties which have faced the
Society during that yvear, and which continue today.

You will have received a number of reports, newsletters and letters from the Secretary and from me to keep vou
informed of what these difficulties are. | would like to make only two points in this regard. First, [ would wish to
record the hard work and dedication of Council members in trying to steer the Society through these turbulent
times. From the time that | attended my first Council meeting earlier this year, | have had nothing but the highest
regard for their commitment to the best interests of the Society and for the way in which they have addressed their
responsibilities as trustees and guardians of all the Society's activities. Secondly, 1 would like to pay tribute to the
stalf who work for the Society. They have been required to carry out their tasks in a period of substantial reduction
and against a background of an uncertain future. We all owe them a debt of gratitude.

You will see from this Annual Report how important is the work of all the Society's activities. In the post-Rio
Summit world, we, along with very few other national institutions, are actually doing something about the
issues — and not just talking about them. Yet this message is not reaching a wider audience and the Society's work
15 not well understood, is undervalued and largely unsung. So we do need to do more to publicize the achievements
of the Society and there is plenty to draw on in this report. This is something in which we can all participate. Please
help your Society to get this message across to a wider audience.

W

PRESIDENT




REVIEW OF THE YEAR

INTRODUCTION
Finance dominated the deliberations of
Council and a threat of the closure ol
London Yoo attracted the considerable
attention of the media. In July, Lord
Pevton felt unable as Treasurer to remain
associated with Council policy and
resigned along with four other members.
Field Marshal Sir John Chapple assumed
the Presidency on 1 March. Whipsnade
celebrated s Diamond Jubilee and the
triennial report of the Institute of Zoology
was published. Two Giant Pandas were
received at London oo on breeding
loan

'SAVE OUR 200°

The yvear started with the press obtaining
confidential information guestioning the
long term viability of London Zoo. This
begat the 'Save our Zoo’ campaign. The
May Bank Holiday Monday attracted
25,000 visitors and donations to the
"save our doo’ campaign throughout the
vear amounted to £2.5 million with
£ 300,000 received in actual cash. Acting
on advice from the auditors and lawvers,
Council, meeting on 9 July resolved to
close London Yoo in September 1992, In
approving the motion, Council recognised
the decision could be reversed if a viable
plan emerged. The furore created by the
“mdave our oo campaign resulted in the
Select Committee on the Environment
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Professor David Bellamyy, Council Member
and well known conservationist lent his
support to the "Sdave our Zoo' campaign in
typically flamboyant stile,
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reporting in favour of Z5L retaining a
presence in Regent's Park but shifting
the emphasis from a representative
menagerie o a conservation-orientated
collection. In a determined effort to main
tain a presence at London Zoo and secure
the viability of the Society as a whole,
Council embarked in July on a major cost
cutting exercise. Some £1.7 million was
cut from the budget with 90 posts being
declared redundant. This led to a balanced
budget being struck which in turn
allowed the President to announce in
March that London Zoo would remain

open

THE MEMBERSHIP
Two Fellows Days were arranged. The
first, to coincide with the Whipsnade Dia
mond Jubilee celebrations, was attended
by 100 Fellows and the second was held at
London on the occasion of the Annual
General Meeting. In both cases, a full pro
gramme had been devised to illustrate the
diversity and relevance of the Society s
wiork

His Excellency The
Japan visited London Zoo on 27 November
in order to receive rom the Secretary o

vWmibassador of

citation electing His Majesty  Emperor
Akihito of Japan to Honorary Fellowship
of the Society., in recognition of His
Majestyv s work in the held of taxonomie
ichthyology,

A newsletter for Fellows, to be pub
lished three times a vear, had an inau-
gural issue in ecarly March. In addition,
the Secretary continued to keep Fellows
informed on strategic issues through a
series ol ‘Dear Fellow™ letters, The list of
Fellows was published in late Februars
and a copy was sent to every Fellow
Economies in production were achieved
by using in-house, desk-top publishing
facilities.

\t the end of the subscription vear
{31 December 19915 there were X, 1495
Fellows and 2,643 Associaies, including

| 35 Student Associates

OBITUARIES

The Council records with deep regret the
deaths  of
Hutchinson, Honorary Fellow:; Professor
N I Kalabukhov, Corresponding Member;
Sir Terence Morrison-Scott, Life Fellow

Professor George  Evelyn

and former Treasurer and Vice President:
Dr Charles Gordon Smith, Life Scientific
Fellow, former Vice President and former
Dean of the London School of Hygiene and

Tropical Medicine: Mr Martin  Senio
Scientific Fellow and Honorary Veterin
ary Surgeon, Whipsnade; Prolessor |

Halstead, Scientific Fellow. vertebra
palaeontologist, philosopher and popul;
writer on geological themes; Mr Pete
Williams, Life Scientific Fellow: Iren
Lady Movnihan. Life Fellow; Licut-Colon:
Eric Sebag-Montefiore, Life Fellow |
88 vears: Colonel John Codrington, Lif
Fellow lor 85 vears; Mr Gerald Priestlan

Associate, writer and broadcaster.

AMNNUAL GENERAL MEETING
I'he Annual General Meeting was held o
25 September 1991 with the President
Professor N A Mitchison, in the Chair
The Treasurer, Lord Peyton, retired
few months belore his term of offi
expired, Lord Armstrong of Hminster
Lord Clinton-Davis, Sir Alcon Copisarow
Lord MoAlpine of West Green (Ordin
Fellows) and Lord Walton of Detchar
Scientihic  Fellow) also  retired fron
Council at their own wish, In accordan
with Article 10 of the Charter and Byelaw
25, the lollowing Fellows retired as Ordin
ary Members ol the Council: Mrs Philipg
Herbert, M
Marler (Ordinary Fellows
MeMeill Alexander and Professor A W

Luthbert [ Scientific Fellows

WM Knowles and Mr

Prolessorn

In accordance with Article 11 of il
Charter and Byvelaw 26, Mr P Holwy
wis elected Treasurer and the following
Fellows were elected Members of Cound
Field Marshal Sir John Chapple, Mr
MP and The Hon Sir Ronal
Waterhouse (Ordinary Fellows ) Projess
M P Hassell and Professor | B Krebs (Scien
tilic Fellows), By virtue of Article 5 (&)
the Charter, Councillor D P Weeks, Lead:
of Westminster City Council and a

Hardy

Ordinary Fellow, was nominated 1o sen
on Council

In accordance with Article 12 ol thi
Charter and Byvelaw 26, the following
Fellows were appointed by Council to til
the Casual Vacancies created by the aboy
resignations: Mr | C Edwards, The Rt Ho
I'he Lord Marsh, Mr C | Perrin, Mr R
Wheater | Ordinary Fellows) and Professol
1] Bellamy (Scientilic Fellow)

The President presented the following
awards [or contributions to zoology:

The Prince Philip Prize (for an account o

|JFiLI.'[IIZ':'!| wiork |r|1'n|';in|._', SO iI‘-.IR'I.'[ i

animal biology, by a pupil under 19 year:
old of a school in the United Kingdom )
Mr Michael H P Shaplard, of Elizabetl
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College, Guernsey, lor his essay “An inves-
tization into the existence of a dominance

hicrarchy within a Hlock of ten sheep

The Thomas Henry Huxley Award (lor
griginal work submitted as a doctoral
thesis) to Dr N D Hopwood of the Uni-
versity  of Cambridge. for his thesis
Siclecular markers of mesoderm indue-
tion in Xenopws leevis : and to [DrA | Read
of the University of Oxlord, lor his thesis

‘Comparative analyses of reproductive

tactics

The Zoological Society of London Frink
Madal Tor British _.-"1:||||||].1i-.lh ilor '-.I!_'!:I|i
cant and original contributions by pro
fessional zoologists to the development
of zoology in its wider implications) to
Professor W I Hamilton, FRS, of the
Lniversity of Oxford, for distinguished
contributions to evolutionary biology
In addition to the Society s awards
cheques generously donated by the Marsh
Christian Trust were presented to the
Prince Philip Prize winner s school, and Lo
the two recipients of the Thomas Henry
Huxley Award

Ihe President also announced that The
scientific Medal (for distinguished work in
dOology by persons under 40 vears of age)
had been awarded to Dr C P Ellington, of
the University of Cambridge, for outstand
ing contributions to the mechanics and
physiology of insect flight, and The
alamlord Raflles Award (awarded to an
amateur zoologist for distinguished con
tributions to @ooloey ) to D I [ Harrison,
tor distinguished contributions to the
study of mammals: these were to be
presented at the Societv’'s November
scientiiic Meeting.

AMENDMENTS TO THE
REGULATIONS

The amendments to the Regulations
consequent to the increase in annual sub
scriptions agreed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 25 September 1991, are

given in Appendix 6

THE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETINGS
A group of Fellows at the Annoal General
Meeting expressed concern at the general
direction being taken by the Society. Two
informal meetings for Fellows were held in
November to enable Council to explain
moves aimed at increasing its account-
ability and set the current crisis in an

historical context. However. 103 Fellows
remained unconvinced and submitted on
20 November a formal requisition for a
special General Meeting., In addition and
to allow a votle of contidence in Council to
be obtained, Council called for both a
postal ballot of the entire Fellowship and
for a Special General Meeting of its own.
I'he result of the postal ballot, in a 40%
poll, was 659 votes for the Council resol
ution and 191 against. Both Special
Meetings were held on 6 January
Ihrees hundred and twenty-live Fellows
altended. The meetings. under the able
chairmanship of Sir Ronald Waterhouse,
debated for three and a hall howurs issues
relating to the viability of the Societv and
the competence of Council and its execu-
tives. The resulting votes reflected a lack
of confidence in past performance ol
Council but alter a short presentation ol
the future plans, a clear mandate was
ohtained for Council to undertake whal
ever tasks necessary to secure the uture
of the Society. The Special General Meet
ings cost the Society L 30,0000, Minutes o
the Special General Mectings have been
deposited in the library and are available

[0 Fellows

; i 1]
Tkh

AN MU A
I 9% 1

REPOR
1992

HER MAJESTY'S GOVERNMENT
Regular meetings were held throughout
the vear with Ministers, and officials dis
cussed the Yoo with the Department of
Employment, Department of the Environ-
ment, Department of Education and
Science and the Number 10 Policy Unit.
Some eighty briehings were given by Z5L
officials to Members of Parliament of all
Privy Council and Charity
Commission were kept informed of devel-
opments throughout the vear. Whilst Her
Majesty's Government admitted to no for-
mal sponsorship role, other than the £1.4
million core funding to the Institute of
Foology, the Society throughout its nego-
tiations had stressed the educational sig-
nificance of the Zoo and its role in the
National Curriculum. in addition to the
Zo0 being an integral part of the cultural

parties. The

life of London.

[he Government reiterated that a new
lease would be offered in 1995, subject to
the Society proving viable, and any area
of the present Yoo declared surplus to
requirements by the Society would be
taken back by the Government. the cost
of any restoration work being borne

by the Government. Neither would the

i/

Angela Horsman, Director of Marketing, explains visitor circulation policies to members of the
Conservative Backbench Tourism Commitiee. From left to right: Andrew Forbes, then Chief
Operating Officer; David Gilroy-Bevan MP, Cltirman; Mr Simoen Coombs MP and Lord

Avcklan:d
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AWARD FOR CONSERVATION
BIOLOGY

A\ new award was set up in the course
ol the year - The Zoological Society ol
London Marsh Award for Conservation
Biology. This is the first new award to be
established for more than 30 vears, It was
felt that the time had come to extend the
range of the Society’s awards for zoology
so a8 to reflect the increasing emphasis on
conservation in the aims and work of the
society, Thanks to the generosity of the
Marsh Christian Trust. who agreed to
donate an annual sum to be awarded
together with a certificate from the
Society. the new award was announced in
the spring of 1992, It is given for contri-
butions of fundamental science to the
conservation of animal species and habi-
tats. The first award, which will be pre-
sented at the Annual General Meeting in
september, has been made to a very dis-
tinguished recipient; Professor B M May,
FRS., of the University of Oxford, for his
seminal studies in population biology

and ecology, which by explaining the

{3

Huctuation of animal populations and the
effects of various environmental factors,
have provided practical conservation

with a sound theoretical basis

COUNCIL AND COMMITTEES
Council met on seven occasions and

the average attendance was 68 [he

President, Professor Avrion Mitchison
resigned on 29 February owing to over
seas Ccommitments, The Society was how
ever, extremely forfunate in secy g as
i successor Field Marshal Sir Johi
'-.-II-I|":'|I.' il |l.'|.ll'.'l. bor ovier 40 vears and
|'l.'-l.':'||"- |i'||:!'|j: 1% i |I!|'! i1l '|| T
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Fhe Core Group, the think tank es
tablished on the recommendation of

MeKinsey & Co.. met on

.
£33 Decasions al

first under the ch trmanship of Sir Alfred
shepperd, then of Peter Holwell, The Cor
Lroup disbanded in January to be
laced with a Management Committee
comprising the Treasurer as
the Secretary three  servin B ANCT
members and two ex Vice-Presidents
Executives attended as r (Liired

David St nbury res pied as Chairmar
ol the Education Committes alter TNy
vears association with the Socien

Andy Grant left at the end of September
on termination of his contract. On attend
ing his linal meeting of Council. the Pres
dent relerred to Mr Grant's commitment
in dealing with the accumulated problems
of the Yoo and macle particular relerenc
o the Increased income generated (rom
Zoo visitors which was almost entirels
due to Mr Grant s initiatives Lravid | [R1 [&3
was appointed General Director of th
society in May with Andrew Forbes as
Chief Operating Officer. However. Council
soon became aware of the need for dedi-
cated senior management at Whipsnade
and Andrew Forbes was appointed Chiel
Executive, Whipsnade

PERSONNEL
At the 31 March 1992 there were 92 full
tme stafl emploved by the Society and
24 2 by Zoo Operations Limited

The summer months were sadly domi-
nated by the need to reduce operating
costs which led to an extensive redun-
dancy programme at both London Zoo
and Whipsnade. A total of 90 posts were
declared redundant but through a series
of measures negotiated with the Trade
LUnions, including a freeze on recuitment
a voluntary redundancy programme and

re-deployvment exercise, it was possi
to reduce the number of compuls
redundancies by 30

Retlecting the need to reduce cos
further, Council on 23 January resolv
by abaolish the posts ol Ceneral | Mirect
and the Director of Administration.
intention being. however, to retain b
ncumbents to supervise the overseas p
gramme and act as Clerk to the Cour
respectively

In -ll.l'.! L1 4O |||I' !|l||:_ _'x:.||'|!|'\.|||' I
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the Ceneral Lirector on SIRCLRC 1S5S
1 senor level includied
ircHmotion ol Car Horouehs to Head
Bnson to Market
l'-.Iul' ] {7 E*] '-".':'i' TN | | "“..:l il

VW hipsiad
binson to Senior Educat

ENeTH SEFVICes Manager Lol

rvonne Lbels was lormally appointed
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¢ ol Jooloey welcomed Dr Step!

Cognised by the presentation of o

clocks or waicl 10 Mrs Daphne Gri
Villlam James, Frank Wheeler and M
siisan Lacev. The Societv's Silver Med:
was awirded to Owen Chamberlain

recognition of his lone and meritord
service over 40 vears, In the examination
for the City & Guilds Certificate in 7

"-.!.l."-l:'.'ll'arll L=

inimal candidat
were successiul, Mrs | mda Da Volls wi
awarded the Nobby Ashby Prize hat

gained a double distinction pass in tl
ity & Guilds Zoo Animal Managemer

COUrse

Departures and Retirements

Lepartures and retirements (vears of ser
vice in brackets) included | Barnard ( 18
Urivers Mate: E Bass (19 Toilet Atten
dant: A Billington ( 30) Head Keeper; Mis
| Burgess (16) Animal Records Clerk
secretary: (0 Chamberlain (40) Project
Datlen (31) Anima
Records Clerk; | Datlen (37) Overseer: R

Manager; Mrs C
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Dillingham( 2 1) Senior Keeper: W Griffiths
(171 Head of Information and Design; M
Hart (220 Senior Laboratory Dechnician:

Ir ¢ Hawkev (26) Research Fellow: R

Hignell ( 22) Gardener: A James(27) Head

Keener kichenside | 34 ) Overseer; Miss
2 Lacev (24 ) Personnel (Mhcer: P Levi ( 28)
Senior Keeper: 1D Linbield (23) Security
Gatekeeper: 8 Lvstor Photographe:

M Mcelnerney (22) Personnel Manager; A

Maskell (27) Head keeper: M O Donnell

i Part-time Cleaner: P Olney (22
11

Criral f Biras: 1 Bobertson

I Robinson ( 28 ) Senior Keeper; ' Rodwas

(21 ) Head Keeper; B Savage (32) Assistant
Visitor Operations Manager: D Shipham
(16) Driver; K Short (17) Senior Keeper;
K Smith (26) Purchasing and Transport
vManager; Miss M Tobias (26) Publications
Department: B Tofield (22) Craftsman:
L} Watson (25) Transport Foreman: C
Wears (31) Architect: C Wheatley (41)
Assistant Head Gardener: D Wood [ 38)
Head Keeper: S Worby (19) Senior Recep
Liomist; | Wrnght (2 1) Estate Worker.,
[hese valued members of staff will be
sorely missed, their expertise and first-

hand know :.-.,':;_'l' hard to replace,

B B R HEFOR
168 B | 9% 2

Obituaries

We regret to record the deaths of the
lollowing pensioners: | C T Alldis, Mrs
B E Bailey. H Callaghan, | Gillard, Miss E
Hanson, F G Kiff, Mrs F B Lynch, W N
Picklord, A E Scrivener, | C Simmons. P R
Slade.
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LONDON ZO0O

Visitors during the vear: 1,074,871

THE COLLECTION
The vear has been another ol consider-
able activity in the Animal Management
department. The need to cut costs drama-
tically during the summer unfortunately
resulted in an unavoidable reduction in
the numbers of staff. The management of
the department was reorganised under
a single curator with three collection
managers and 10 sections, each with a
keeper-in-charge. This simplilied struc-
ture reflected the lower number of staff
needed to look after fewer animals. The
reduction in stock provided an oppor-
tunity tocreate larger spaces for those ani-
mals remaining and much of the winter
was spent removing dividing partitions
between enclosures and landscaping
Cooperative management of species
nationally and internationally, remains
a chiel preoccupation. As well as main
taining the international studbooks for
Glant Pandas and Mongoose Lemurs, the
stafl are also European coordinators
for sumatran Tigers and Golden Lion
Famarins, and national coordinators and
or studbook keepers for Gibbons (all

species).  Sulawesi Crested Macaques,

Dourcucouli. Slender and Slow Loris,
White-faced Saki  Monkevs, South
American Small Cats, Asian Short-clawed
Otters, Californian Sealions, White-faced
Scops Owls, Rothschild’s Mynahs, Partula
snails and Wart-biter Crickets

On the Cotton Terraces female Anoa
and Giraffe were born. Chapman's Zebra
now share enlarged paddocks with the
Giraffe as used to be the case with Grant’s
Zebra in times past. Tapirs. Gaur and
Sable Antelope were sent on deposit o
enable enclosures to be enlarged. In the
Sobell Pavilion for Apes and Monkeys, the
arrival ol Giant Pandas. '‘Bao Bao' and
‘Ming Ming'. was the major event of the
vear, 'Ming Ming is important as the first
Giant Panda to be sent out of China on
breeding loan, as opposed to short term
exhibition loans. and this augurs well fos
future international co-operation i breed
ing this highly endangered and beautiful
animal. The International Studbook [or
Gilant Pandas continues to be maintained
in cooperation with Chinese colleagues
from the Ministries of Forestry and Con
struction. and with Dr Devra Kleiman
of the Mational Yoo in '|.1|..|-.';|r|:_-|.-‘;

AL

The arrival of *Ming Ming', the female Giant Panda, attracted considerable media attention. The
Rt Hon Sir Edward Heath MP is seen opening the new Panda enclosure, made passible through

the generous sponsorship of Panda Drinks Lid

s

Unlortunately our male Giant Pand
‘Chia Chia’, died in Mexico but not befo
siring one cub, "Xin Xin', last vear. He |;
two viable offspring (one in Mexico, one
Madrid) so justilving the decision to se
him to Mexico on breeding loan. In i
Sobell Pavilions a new female Hamly
Owl-faced Monkey was received on lo
from Mulhouse Zoo in France and the p
of hybrid. non-breeding Spider Monke
were exchanged lor a pair of pure-bre
Red-faced Black Spider Monkevs

Fhe twao pairs of Astatic Lions in il
New Lion Terraces, which were receis
last vear from Sakkarbag Zoo, have n
started “play mating”, and the vouw
males have begun to establish a don
nance pattern. We look forwarnd to [l
cooperation with other collections wi
have recently received this very rare |
cal. Embryvos rom both female Sumat
lNigers are in (reezer storage. The pedig
ol these females is notl proven but
embryos were sired by the Zoo's pure-br
sumatran Tiger male. It is hoped that
the use of in vitre fertilisation ted hnigu
these animals mav be able to contrib
to the Sumatran Tiver ene [
wWork is being carried oul in co-operal
with Dr Harry Moore of the Instituts
Zoology. London Yoo manages the |
iEuropean  Endangered Species
gramme) for Sumatran Tigers, The 5
lion Pool was the subject of a n
refurbishment. A new drainage sysie
wiis installed and the ||'.|'|.|.f| dAppearan
ol this very popular exhibit has bee
preatly improvied

\ female Asian Elephant “Thi Hi Wa
Was sent on -.||'|'lll'-.ll Ly |..II|,"‘-.:I,'| anad w
successfully mated by their male 'Chang
in December. The oldest female Eleph:
at the Yoo, ‘Dilberta’, will also soon be se
to Chester for mating with ‘Chang’. Sl
will then return to London and if she
pregnant, her call will be born in tw
vears time. Black Rhinos, ‘June' al
‘Basha . were both sent to Port Lympn
leaving the voung pair ‘Jos’ from Crech
slovakia and ‘Rosie’, our hand-reare
lemale; they have been showing signs
sexual interest in each other

In the Clore Pavilion for Small Man
mals, phase one of the improvements an
renovation was completed in the bas
ment. In the new bat cave, the five pairs
Rodriguez Fruit Bats have started breed
ing: London Yoo acted as the halfw:
house for the redistribution of 10 pair
to zoos in the UK and US, coordinate
by Jersey Wildlife Preservation Trus
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Spring sunshine accentuates the graceful lines of Decimus Burton's Giraffe House. The Okapi

anid Ciraffe padidocks, refurbished and enfarged as part of the Zoo changes programme, are shown

Camelilf 5 0 hrrr.'a*,rr | I'I:” §ogarnel
Brush-tailed Porcupine
{ below ) in the Clore Pavilion
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Another new exhibit in the basement con-
tains Zorillas which have settled in well
and have now produced two sets of twins.
The Leadbeater’s Possums continue to be
prolific and we are now sending a selec-
tion of the offspring back to Australia for
reintegration into the Australian captive
breeding programme for this extremely
rare. small marsupial, thought extinct
and rediscovered in 1961, Other births in-
cluded Brush-tailed Porcupines, Goeldi's
Monkeys and Pygmy Marmosets. New
arrivals were Hairy Armadillos and Cape
Crested Porcupines (to replace the aging
pair of hybrids)

In the newly amalgamated bird depart-
ment. the collection has been rationalised
both to cul costs and to focus more closely
on conservation of particular species
HJ".{'.'ll:""\q continue to be sent on I11'j"ll?~l'| [F]
other collections and several aviaries
have been combined to creale more space,
particularly in the Pheasantries and
outside the Bird House. The colony of
Black-footed Penguins continues to grow
18 chicks being hatched during 1991,
A Scarlet Ihis was successiully pareni
reared; this is the first time this species has
bred at London Zoo, Other interesting
hatchings included a Slender-billed Cock-
atoo, Turkmenian Eagle Owls, Kenyvan
Bagle Owls, Boobook Owls, a W hite-faced
Scops Owl and a Barn Owl. A Snowy wl
ghick was also hatched but did not sur-
vive: it was, however, the fifty-seventh
ghick to be sired by "Eros’. who has been
in the Zoo for over 40 vears after being
picked up off the Azores by HMS Eros in
1950. The colony of Quaker Parakeets
raised nine voung. Species artificially
Incubated and reared included White
Eared Pheasant, Temminck's Tragopan
and Impeyan Pheasant, Four male Chilean
Elamingos were acquired on breeding loan
to help balance the sex ratio of the group.
A pair of Cape Parrots and a pair of Fairy
Lorikeets were acquired on breeding
loan,

The Aquarium remains one of the most
popular parts of the Zoo. A wide variety ol
fishes continues to be exhibited and the
breeding success of the Lake Victoria
Cichlids hias been maintained. The Aguar-
ium has long been the subject of scrutiny
by Environmental Health Officers and
dlkriﬂg the winter their concerns were
addressed by a series of measures designed
to extend its life and allow for significant
Improvements in the future. These in-
cluded asbestos removal. preparation of a
Fewiring plan and resealing the roof.

ANNUDAL REPORT

199 ] 19932

Innovative use of existing tanks has resulted in a new displag in the Aguarium on Mangroves

amd Swamps

Wart-biter Cricket, an endangered species successfully reared in the Invertebrate House

In the Reptile House a new enclosure
for the Burmese Pythons was built, incor-
porating an extremely realistic artificial
huttress tree constructed in-house. A Gila
Monster was hatched, one of two eggs
incubated and this brings to four the
number bred at the Zoo, Exchanges are to
be made with Glasgow Zoo, who have the
other main group in the UK. The old
Beaver Pond in the middle gardens is
being converted into a reptiliary. a move
that should please those visitors who re-
member the old reptiliary near the main
gate.

The breeding successes for endangered
species continue unabated in the Inverte-
brate House. These included hatchings ol
the Wart-biter Cricket, second gener-
ation hatchings of the Ialian Ground
Beetle and continued breeding ol vari-
ous Partula snail species. New exhibits
included tanks for Stick Insects, Damsel-
Flies. Bird-eating Spiders and Jewel
Wasps.

In conclusion, in spite of a year that was
difficult by any measure, the Collection of
animals at London Zoo. and the ways in
which these are exhibited, still compare

11




FHE ZO00LOGICAIL
SOCIETY OF LONIDN

favourably with major collections else-
where. An opportunity was provided to
be more selective and to choose those
species that are ol particular conservation
and captive interest, This
trend. underway for some vears. will
continue.

breeding

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT

General Services Division

The General Services Division resulted
from an amalgamation in August of the
five former units: Works. Gardens. Archi-
tects. Purchasing and Transport and
Information and [Design.  Substantial
economies were achieved in the conse-
quent simpliiied management structure
The manager of the new department is
Graham Roden. who is supported by
supervisors of three divisions., Gardens
Maintenance and Transport. The effective-
ness of the new cohesive unit was tested
during the "Zoo Changes’ project. under-
taken over the winter months. This
increased the size of enclosures for many
animals, including a major re-design of
the Cotton Terrace paddocks. The task
was accomplished ahead of schedule and
within budget. The Sealion Pool was
refurbished. primarily to improve drain-
age, and subsidence on the canal bank
was reciified,

Gardens

The Gardens Section. although reduced in
stall numbers, continued to maintain
high standards and priority was given to
designing flower beds requiring minimum
maintenance. The hanging baskets and
jardiniere provided at the Main Entrance
received wide acclaim and the tropical
planting, formerly concentrated on the
‘Gorilla Bed' was transferred to a larger
bed adjacent to the Lifewatch Centre. This
allowed the ‘Gorilla Bed® to be planted
with shrubs and a grass verge created. A
reduction in the planting area of summer
bedding plants reduced maintenance
costs, vel careful choice of the more
decorative shrubs maintained the attract-
iveness of such prominent locations.
The formal Howerbeds in the Members'
Enclosure were softened by being divided
into two smaller beds and complemented
by a grass verge. Attention was also given
to the shrubberies lining the Zoo peri-
meter fence on the Outer Circle, Prince
Albert Read and the Broadwalk.

I )

Retail

Despite a difficult trading vear, gross in-
come increased by 6% over the previous
yvear. The average spend per visitor
increased by 16% to £1.36. The London
Zoo Gift Shop continued to act as a model
for other leisure attractions and the range
of merchandise rellected the wide socio-
economic origins of visitors. A standard
licensing agreement lor products printed
with images from the Societv's archive
was produced and three rovally agree-

ments have so far been concluded

Assistant Retail Manager Mo Powell models
e Farge of T shirts nowe availalale fi th
Loo Shop Jeaturing prints reproduced from
the S hety 5 own collection of Elliot’s

manograph of e Felidae

Zoo Hospitality

The announced closure of the Zoo ad-
versely affected banqueting sales, es
pecially during the Christmas period.
However, this was offset by an increase in
spend per visitor and improvement in
bangueting business once the future of
the Zoo had been announced. The Coffec
Shop, the main catering outlet in the
Zoo and open throughout the year, was
refurbished with the opportunity being
taken to incorporate the very latest re-
quirements of the licensing authorities
regarding fire prevention and evacuation
procedure, The 1992 edition of the
Guinness Book of Records was launched

at the doo with close participation
Zoo Hospitality and the fifth birthd
programme of the Clothes Show w
recorded by the BBC in the Raffles Suit

Information and Design

\s part of the cost reduction programm
the unit was disbanded in Augy
although an in-house capacity to produ

standard SRS WS rictained. An extensn

audit of the Zoo graphics was undertake

and a new standard label was -.||'~.|lrg||
(in collaboration with the Curastorial an
Fducation Departments) for eventual i
stallation throughout the gardens. Tl
use of modern acryvlic-based material
using computer-aided design techniqu
resulted in a consistency of approach
colour and economy of scale. The I
graphics generally have been one of |
most consistent criticisms ol the Fo

recent vears and the latest programn
which is intended to be fully implement
by 19494, will at last address this m

. .
LT rtant issue

Visitor Operations

Responsibility for the Main Office rec
lion, switchboard and events programi
was translerred to the Visito 'I|'|l|'r.|.'|
Department, allowing more effective
ol manpower. The Main (ffice was clo
at weekends with reception, lost proper
and group sales translerred o the M
Gate. A new conitract [or ;luhh. s
phones was negotiated which result
in the supply, rental, installation and =
vicing of all units af no cost 1o the Socie
\ review ol the animal escape drill wi
undertaken which resulted in the int
duction of some procedural changes
comprehensive [raining programime
the firearms team was initiated with t!
achive participation ol the "..|,1-||'.:-p|-||:.-
Police. To comply with the requireme
of the Environmental Protection A
19490, an application to register the £
was submitted to the local authority. Tt
extent of any remedial work to the i
nerator has vet to be established and w
depend on a series of emission tests under
taken by specialist contractors on beha
of the local authority.

The London Fire Brigade inspected tl
Main Office in July and duly issued a ki
certiticate. A daily programme of anim
encounters, leeding and close conta
sessions ran throughout the year wil
additional activities during the summ:
season. The Pink Panther (late Spring
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Presenter Samdy Harris explaing to a small audience the instinetive behaviour of a Ruffed Lemma

following an "Animals in Action” show

Bank Holidav) and the Living Nativity
4['|."x'_r|:.-.~.l.'.1|I'.|.'I-:'|‘|'.'|.'|-.||'IIII|'F1"-.1 L new
programme called "Animals in Action
was introduced into the main amphi-
theatre. This featured animals chosen
to demonstrate aspects of their natural
behaviour and a Rulled Lemur, Green
Wineed Macaw

Owl were the first four participants, along

kookaburra and Barn

side the Spiders, Camels, Llamas and
Reindeer for the complementary "Meet the
Animals =sessions. The animal events
feam participated widely in many guest
appearances both in and out of the Yoo
and proved to be a valuable aid to the
public relations department

MARKETING

1991 was a very mixed vear for London
£00. The “Zoo closure’ crisis broke in early
April and whilst this had a very positive
efect on attendance initially, as the season
developed, the uncertainty over the Zoo's
[uture became a barrier to attendance
with many people assuming, incorrectly,
that the Zoo had either closed or was about
to. and so would not be worth a visit as it
would be run down and uninspiring.

Ihe advertising plan for 1991 was to
concentrate on the arrival of *Ming Ming'.
the Giant Panda. However, her arrival
was delayed until October so alternative
advertising was used during the season. A
radio campaign launched the season pro-
moling a special Easter event sponsored
by Tomy Toys with subsequent radio
supporting the appeal ‘fun days” over the
May bank holidays with Elephant Bath-
time and the Moonlight World featured
d“””bt the school holidays.

In Mav, the Yoo received a commen
dation lor the 1990 advertising campaign
from the Duke of Westminster as part of
the London Tourist Board and Conven-
tion Bureau s Marketing

wiards,

President’s

\ new consumer leaflet was produced
using innovative design and copy based
on the
encounters at London Zoo. A promotional
leablet was also produced in six languages
(French. German. Spanish, [talian, Arabic
and Russian) containing basic  infor-

LIRS R ST ]! close

mation on the location of the Zoo, its
opening hours and key attractions. The
leaflets were distributed throughout the
market catchment area to hotels, tourist
outlets, libraries and at each of the
terminals at Heathrow Airport. as well as
at consumer fairs and exhibitions.

The targeting of the travel trade and
groups through a dedicated marketing
campaign continued. Coach operators
were again offered familiarisation visits,
free parking offers, publicity and incen-
tive schemes. Special days were held for
scouts and guides with 1,250 guides
and 760 scouts attending in June and
6,200 guides and scouts attending in
September, weather
conditions. 7,000 taxi drivers identified

despite adverse
as major ambassadors of the Zoo, and
their families. attended a special fund-
raising day in April. The Society of the
Golden Keys, whose membership is made
up of hotel hall porters, also offered its
support.

Key exhibitions and workshops, such as
the World Travel Market, MOOT, and the
English language schools workshop were

ANNUAL
1991

REFOKT
e e

all attended and the Zoo was represented
at MITCAR in Paris for the first time.

The conference facility of the Society's
meeting rooms was re-launched for 1991,
A new information pack was produced,
and the facilities were actively promaoted
with mailings sent to past users, in
addition to those organisations on the
L.ondon Tourist Board enguiries list,

The programme of market research
into levels of visitor satisfaction was con-
tinued. Over the three surveys held in
March, June and August, on average 84%
said their visit represented very good or
good value for money, 82% said their visit
was as good as or better than expected.
and 85% said thev would recommend a
visit to a friend.

The BBC's ‘First Sight” and Thames
Television's ‘London Programme” both
ran documentaries on the Zoo closure
crisis. The "Save our Zoo' campaign was
covered by local, national and inter-
national media, with highlights including
reporting on the Mayday special event,
the delivery ol the zoo petition to 10
Downing Street and the Pink Panther
[un-day. "The Daily Mirror was particu-
larly supportive, launching its own “Save
the Animals’ appeal.

Lifewatch magazine continued to be
published for members and adopters and
included advertising for the first time,

EDUCATION
In August the staff complement of the
department was

reduced from nine posts to lour.

London Education

School Programmes
‘Hands-on’ sessions continue to be the
most popular sessions for Primary schools
and ‘Putting Animals into Groups', the
most  popular secondary programme,
New material introduced this vear in-
cludes a secondary pack on adaptations to
feeding, an activity bag for very young
children and families. packs containing
pre-visit activities, post-visit activities and
a Zoo trail. A similar topic pack on senses
will be ready lor the summer season.
Many secondary schools brought their
English classes to hear about the role of
zo0s as part of their language work, dis-
cussing controversial issues such as
‘Keeping Animals in Captivity'.
Attendances during the summer term
were good, but fell during Autumn and
Spring terms. A questionnaire was sent o
100 named teachers who had brought
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Prince Harry visited the Zoo along with other
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groups in Autumn 1990, but who did not
return i Autumn 19491, The resulis
showed that they were very satisfied with
:]t;' educational sessions  and |||.-_|-:-.'|.-.|
they received at the Zoo, but that the cost
ol travel and the time taken travelling
WeEre important [actors aflecting repeat

VISIES

Learning Opportunities for Visitors
Luided tours on endangered species and
historical buildings were given by volun-
teers to pre-booked groups at London and
these will be extended to the peneral
visitor during the coming summer season
Mips and mini-guides are being produced
in several foreign languages for visitors
Irom abroad.

At London. April will see the launch of
our first adult evening class—a 10 week
course entitled "Animal Ecology and Con-
servation’, It is designed for people with
no formal background in the biological
i

sciences and will include tours of the

collection

Public Information Service

The Education Department received over
3,700 letters from the public, and school
children in particular. requesting infor
mation. A survey of these letters has been

| 4

made overa period of six months to ena
us o wrte a =zelection of informai

'~|'||'-:"‘- o e maost |'l-'|"l-|-l' LOPCS

‘Keeping Animals in Captivily Hiig

LI"-':'HI:._ atl London Yoo L areors

Loology and "Rainforests

keeper Training Course

Pespite the reduction in staff, there
greater number of Keepers being trair
London has 12 Keepers in their first s

P

and 10 completing their second vea

3 = '] 1 Vin . IR | » 5
he City and Guild’s course in Ani

Management. However, It has nol

possible to arrange trips to Whipsn
and other zoos as part of the courst
wirdld have lelt animal sections

il [eulle !

L f 1 T li rHange il
| I inlormatiog T
Il LT I b i
il nenting rom  volunl
. . ¥l i I i | 1 !I "|=.I. ] d w
HISS mrnales, Jdurirg [hee oo LT et LA "
i 1 | [ il % e I

Vially Dineen {camera) and Phil Sireather ( sound recordist ) spent six months at London Zoo
recording both visitor orientated events and the deliberations of Council, A series of four

dovumentaries, based on London Zoo., are to I shrowenr by the BRC in the autumn
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Drivers day. For the hrst time volunteers
worked over the winter period helping al
Qanta’s Grotto and the Living Nativity and
in answering letters from the public. A
Valunieer Agresment is being int oduced
ta improve the organisation ol the
scheme

ilison Binns, one of our volunteers.
opesented to the oo a beautiful hand
feled w all h Inging that she had -.||'-I:,'_I'|:'-|
and made hersell. Called "The Flooded
Foirest ', il .f|-|'-'._ ts animals liv g in the rain
farest of South America and can be seen in

the Clore Pavilion

Plans for the Future

The London | ducation department has
drawn up initial plans | roposed new
Children and Familyv Centre which is to
incorporate a restructured Children s Zoo

I:l

and a Pet Care L'|-||r.-1-_ 5 I,'|.|,'|| % IMEAny

exciting new  activities and learning

opportunties,

PUBLIC RELATIONS

'he Select Committee for the Environ
ment, as part of its studv into the Yoo,
visited Regent's Park and the Institute of
Zoology, The Education Committee of the
Lity ol Westminster saw something of the
imaginative Liscovery Centre and learned
||Il' 'l'||"..|||l.:' ol the Zoo to the l\'-..!“lll'_.ll
Curriculum. Local amenity groups con-
tinued to take a close interest in the
society s affairs and cordial meetings were
held at the XYoo with the |'::'::|'I'|I'- Park and
Primrose Hill Area Advisory Commitiees
he Director of Administration addressed

I|I:' WOM of the 56 John s Wood Society

and Camden Council chose the oo as a

A NN A EEFIOR
1 99 1 %592

venue to launch its leisure card scheme
for Camden residents. Capital Radio
managed a Coca-Cola sponsored 'Carni-
val with the Animals’ as part of the Capital
Radio music lestival in July. The evening
of music included the orchestra of the
Roval College of Music with the proceeds
kindlv donated to the ‘Save our Zoo' cam
paign. Mr Bryan Gould. MP, the Shadow
sSecretary of State for the Environment,
visited the Yoo in connection with the
Sdve our Loo campaign.

A film unit was resident in the Yoo from
mid-summer through to March recording
both the significant constitutional events
and also the dayv-to-day work of animal
hushandry and administrative support.
lhe Hlyv-on-the-wall type of documentary
is scheduled to be televised by the BBC in
the Autumn.



Visitors during the year: 469.821
Cars brought into the Park: 54.475

GENERALI

'he vear was dominated by the celeb-
ration of the Diamond Jubilee, On 2 3 May,
the actual anniversary of the opening, His
Roval Highness The Prince Edward visited
the Park and later opened the new Tiger
exhibit, The previous day, a special
Fellows™ Day™ had been arranged when a
hundred Fellows attended the opening
both of ‘Passage thru' Asia’ and an
exhibition of the history of Whipsnade
Fhey also saw many of the other recent

improvements in the Park.

NEW DEVELOPMENTS
“Tiger Falls’, the largest and most signifi
cant development at Whipsnade lor mans
viears and sited in the old Wolf Wood area,
includes a walk-through path {or visitors
dffording commanding views of the Park.
The family of Siberian Tigers soon estab-
lished itselfl in the three and a hall acre
exhibit where they are Iree o choose
between bathing in the rock pool beneath
the waterfall or relaxing in the woodland
areqd. ‘Passage thru® Asia’ incorporates an
area of previously unproductive land to
the south east of the Park. The area is a
reserve lor Asian hooled animals, where
visitors either in their cars or as EHEE
sengers on the steam train, may sce them
at close gquarters. The Chimpanzee Centre
is an example of innovative use of electric
H | gatt -:-.|i-|.-:':'| i}

I!'|'|-'||I'__' 11 «dll exXIshng

chimps quarters, It allows the animals

much greater freedom than they pre-
viously had and at the same time improves
the public’s opportunity to study these
much lowved creatures
The Children’s Farm,

last vear's report, has specialised in stock

referred to In

ing domestic animals which would have
been a lamiliar leature of farms between
the wars but sadly many now owe their
existence solely to the excellent work of
the Rare Breeds Survival Trust, of which
the Society

Farm

was a lounder member. The

Wi dgwards [or

three national
design and construction. BP provided the
complete developmental costs of the "Bear
Trail Maze’, where visitors learn of the di
verse habitats and varving species ol bears
in an entertaining manner. Allied Lyons
sponsored the conversion of an old cottage
into "The Spotted Pig” public house. The
Leicestershire Cooperative Society SPO-
sored the development of 'Dash About
'hink About’, an educational activity for
visitors and in particular children, to
learn about the diverse skills of animals.

1 6&

WHIPSNADE WILD ANIMAL PARK

Tiger Falls

T el Iy

PLEHL The Peanoe Edllaard O ' s
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Prince Edward visiled W -:.'!l!"‘-'l..'.iln
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Viay. He is shown tinvelling a plagee adjacent (o the new Tiger Falls'. Looking on is Curat
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1 special Steam Weekend was held at Whipsnade in May. Special guests included from right |

left: Dennis Tunnicliffe. Managing Director o
Selwork south Easi

Suiman Tumricliffe, former Head of Education

I London Ulmdy l.,'l:l.'.ll'..' arid Chiris Green. Dhirecton

©Mrs Mitzi Gireeen is stamding next 1o her hushand and on her right is Mo

Aok, Lo '-"h.lf.'-|' e B% hefi | Peter Denton, Divector

Administration, imdulging for the weekemd. Driver Dick Stangharn is in the background

THE COLLECTION

Breeding successes of pote include a
Pygmy Hippo, eight Bactrian Camels,
Yak, Giraffe W
Congo Buffalo, twelve Scimitar Horned
Oryx. a Siberian Tiger, Red Panda, three
Paradise Cranes, a Ruppell’s Vulture, 16
Humboldt's Penguins and two White

the hirst lor 16 vears

laced Scops Owls, New arrivals 1o the
Park included two Ruffed Lemurs for the
‘Meet the and
Cheetahs from South Africa. A Bald Eagle,
a Bengal Eagle Owl and a Saker Falcon
were introduced inte the bird flving

Animals sessions LW

".ll.'lfl'lliir'l.‘\-“":ﬂ 1310,

Departures included the sole Wart H
o Germany (o join a breeding grol
Various species of conservation inter
were sent to other collections as parl
co-operative programmes: these includ
Hed Cheetah l;FI".:-,.'H- Lol
Preewalski's Asiatic Wild A
White Rhino, Pygmy Hippos, Humbald
Penguins, Sandhill Cranes. White-nap

Cranes, Wattled Cranes. Stanley Cran

Panda,

Horse,

Roseate Cockatoo. Consolidation of U

Collection continues with attempts

integrate species where possible, such
White Rhino with Roan Antelope al
The '
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Kiberian Tiger

Collection into regions was completed and
the new exhibits are maturing with
enhanced conditions lor some ol the
species such as Chimpanzees. Several
COnservation [ro) i s |':I.:|||.|.' LR i [Prigress
this year. The Great Bustards were
released into a new ten acre pen, designed
10 simulate the habitat to which the birds
would need to adapt if reintroduced into
the English countryside Progress has
been made in understanding the basic
physiology and seasonality of these birds.
A comparison will be made with their
greater degree of freedom in the larger
pen

MARKETING
Whipsnade continued the "Out of Bedford-
shire’ advertising campaign. launched in
1990, so building on the awareness
dlready  developed. Television was re-
tained as the primary medium as it
reached the maximum number of both
thal and repeat visitors,

In order to extend 1|."|'|'|i|'l-.‘i]!|illjl'l"i adver-
tsing presence, a 48-sheet poster cam-
Paign ran in June and July to bridge the
Biggest gap in the Whipsnade television
Campaign. (ver one hundred key poster
siles were securad on major route ways to

ANNIDAL
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Three ‘Defender” Lamd Rovers were most generously loaned to the Society by Land Rover Lid,
he vehicles, based at Whipsnade, were used extensively as part of the veterinary Wildlife
Fraining Course. The vehicles are shown amongst the White Rhino herd at Whipsnade

the M1 in north London boroughs and
within close proximity of Whipsnade.
Also of importance was the new
Channel 4 children's series “Boom!
which was partly filmed at Whipsnade
and co-presented by Jane Pardoe, ong of
Whipsnade s own stafl. Texas Instruments
adopted an elephantin the Park which was
linked to an on-pack promotion of a new
Peck-a-Zoo’ children’s game. Other suc-
cessful promotions included Whipsnade
being featured in the Barclaycard profiles
catalogue, which had a circulation of two
million. A new eyecatching, full colour
events guide and map was produced to
launch the Diamond Jubilee year, spon-
sored in part by Amway and Kodak. The
new Whipsnade guide book was re-
launched in June. This major publication

was the first to introduce the new cor-

porate identity and followed the ‘Out of

Bediordshire’ theme lor its (ront cover.

A higher profile locally has been obtaimed by
Whipsnade s adoption of a midibus based in
Hemel Hempstead, decked out in the
Whipsmade corporate colours

A corporate hospitality leaflet was pro-
duced and mailed out to local businesses,
and a new scheme. ‘Business Friends
of Whipsnade' which encouraged local
companies and organisations to support
the Park and share in its success, was
launched in May.

EDUCATION

The number of school children visiting
the Park as part of an organised party
increased by H8% over the previous
vear. This has justified the provision of
additional classroom space and, much
against the trend, the staff complement
has been increased to cater for these
higher numbers. Kodak sponsored a Field
Studies Centre which links formal teach-
ing with additional under-cover visitor
facilities during holiday periods within the
new Wildlife Pond Project. itself the subject
of sponsorship from Texas Instruments.

GRAPHICS

New graphics were only partially intro-
duced owing to budgetary constraints
but they should be finished during the
current vear. The graphic requirements
at Whipsnade are unigue. A centralised
information board system was adopted
within each of the regions or main pad-
dock systems, This enabled a storyboard
approach to allow visitors to see the
animals in the context of their habitat.
Traditional single board graphics with
species and geographical information for
the more knowledgeable zoologists are
also planned.
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truly international nature of the coy il h
Richard Kock received a high profile [
s vital role in the ‘Into the Blue' pr
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DEVELOPMENT

The division mceived, launched and
developed the Save ou LOo0 campaign
Hizhlights included Fun Days on the May
Bank Holidays: i part ular a May Day
|'|-'|-.-|-|.-I|.-'| L'.!I'-\..I! sl |-"l.| Iy e -l|. '!'-:'
highest attendances on a single day in
ecenl vears. Some L2 million was raised
in cash and kind and a petition ol
Bl EII) STl DTS AWals i"'l"-'.'l'|!'-.| tao L)
Downing strect

v the new plans for London Ao
PICTEC OV the next few months then
the potential sponsors, donors and com
i e KW E |‘-.|I|II|'|-'-".!| be approacied anem
i an endeavour to translate their interest
imto investment lor the luture

[lesplie the natu il WS 0 --|||1--."
Zoo, substantial progress has been made
im securing sponsorship and unding o
fmitiatives at Whipsnade Wild Animal
Park. totalling in excess of L&
Developments to benefit include the BP
Resir Trail, the BOC Flamineo Exhibit and

the Letcestershire Co-Uperative Society s

Diash About. Think About . Further proj

o interest rom lunders. The Business
Friends of Whipsnade Wild Animal Park. a
membership scheme lor the local business
community was launched. A lund rasing
slrateey lor W '::|"'~"-I.Il was developed
which allows it to stand alone within the
snciety s portlolio of activities and G

gltract lunders in its own aght

CONSERVATION AND CONSULTANCY

DIVISION

hee Conservation (dfice continues o
develop and maintain an active overseas
programme [ocusing primarily on the
Middle East and Africa. The King Khalid
Wildlife Research Centre in Saudi Arabia.
which the Society runs on behall of the
Mational Commission for Wildlife Conser-
vation and Development, expanded its
activities with the reintroduction ol two
species of Gazelle, Tdmi and Bheem.

In Kenva, the Society continued to
second Dr B A Brett to the Wildlife Service
as National Rhino Co-ordinator. A Five-
year Management Plan is to be pri wluced
shortly which will specily strategic pri-
orities for this highly endangered species.
\lso in Kenva, the Laikipia Elephant
Project entered s second vear, with Dr
Chris Thouless as the executant collecting
swiensive information on the movement
patterns and ecology of one of the
ountry’s largest Elephant populations.
Ythoueh the expenmental satellite track
ing element of the project, generously
funded by Bune: |'l|| nas proven o he
inappropriate under local conditions, the
project, undertaken on behall of the
Fenva Wildlite Service in conjunction
with the World Wide Fund for Nature, will
be completed at the end of 1992 using
conventional radio trag King.

Elsiew here vehicle kindly donated by
Range Rover North America was sent (o
Fthiopia as part of the Society's pro
oramme of wildlife conservation assist-
ance in that country. The vehicle is being
used by staff of Wildlite Conservation
International in the collaborative work on
a management plan for Awash National
Park. Support or conservation eflorts lor
Mountain Mvala in the Kuni Muoktar
Reserve and Abvssinian Woll (also Known
as the Simien Jackal)l, both endangered
endemic species, was also supplied over
the vear., A formal memorandum ol co-

operation between the Society and the

Ethiopian Wildlife Conservation Organis-
ation was agreed as a preliminary to
a formal co-operative programme in
Ethiopia.

Our commitment to reintroduction
programmes for Arabian and Scimitar-
homed Oryx remains firm and in
Movember the Niger Faunal Restoration
Group was established to promote the
implementation of a project for Addax and
Orvx in Niger. Local political uncertain-
ties in the Sahara led to the postponement
of the proposed activities but it is hoped
that these will be resolved soon.

Collaborative projects in Kenya will
continue with the secondment of Richard
Kock, Curator/Veterinarian at Whips-
nade, to the Wildlife Service Veterinary
Unit. Additionally. the Society will con-
tinue as the contracting partner with the
Dverseas Development Administration on
Stage Il of the fencing of the Aberdares
National Park.

Participation in the Government's con-
servation programme in Saudi will expand
as further reintroduction projects are
established, particularly in the southern
part of the Kingdom.

In October, Dr Chris Thouless, a Fellow
of the Society, received the Queen’s Gal-
lantry Medal for the rescue of Alexandra
Dixon during an elephant attack in north-
ern Kenva. In co-operation with WWl
and the Kenva Wildlife Service. the Society
was participating in a study of elephants
on the Laikipia Plateau. As part of this
study radio collars are put on immobilised
elephants but on one occasion things
went wrong., Miss Dixon was badly
gored and hurled by the herd matriarch
but otherwise escaped unharmed thanks
to the bravery of Dr Thouless who dis-
tracted the elephant by beating it with
his hands. Without his courage. Miss
Dixon would undoubtedly have been
killed.
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SCIENTIFIC ACTIVITIES

RESEARCH

THE INSTITUTE OF
Z00LOGY

With the establishment of the Ecology
Research L:1'llll[". the rl;‘ll!'-l.:,|r|i~.4|[||||1 ol the
society s scientilic work, begun three
Yodrs dgo and referred to in last vear's
Annual Report, is now complete. An indi-
cation of the success of the new structure
i5 the rapidity with which collaborative
links between the research groups have
been established. It is also satisfving

to record the fund-raising successes of

the Ecology and Conservation Genetics
Groups, with over £100,000 having been
raised by these new groups from external
sources during the last vear

\lthough we attempt here to describe
most ol the research projects carried out
by Institute staff, space permits only a very
A fuller
description may be found of much of the

brief mention of many of them

society’s work in the Scientific Report,
Seience for Conservation, published in 1991

and covering the period [ 988=199(0),

ECOLOGY
As human populations expand nature
reserves become increasingly important
N conservation. but competition between
species may lead to undesirable popu-
fation trends. In the Serengeti, increasing
Hyena and Lion populations are respon-
sible for high mortality rates in Cheetah
olispring. Towhat extent do Cheetah avoid
hunting and denning in areas with high
densities of these larger predators? Inves-
tigation will throw light on competition
theory and on the management of nature
reserves in relation to ¢ Onservation.
studies of the intrinsic and extrinsic
lactors influencing repraduction and sur-
vival of the African Hunting Dog, which
15 endangered, are important in assessing
the risk of extinction. A study in Zimbabwe
s concentrating on how social factors
influence demography. In most packs
breeding is confined to one pair and the
young help to rear subsequent litters.
remales may disperse, but their sub-
sequent reproductive  success, though
important, is poorly understood. Histori-
cal patterns of dispersal. which will be
reconstructed in collaboration with the
Conservation Genetics Group, will clarify
the theoretical debate about the relative
significance of genetic and demographic
lactors in conserving populations.

2()

The best known species of Ants have a
single breeding female (queen). but some
species have several. What ecological
lactors promote the evolution of societies
with multiple queens despite apparent
reproductive competition? With the poly-
gynous Ant, Leptothorax acervorum, this
can be investigated in the field in Fast
Anglia and in
environments

In the Soay Sheep on St Kilda. individ
uals heterozygous at the polvmorphi

controlled laboratory

protein, adenosine deaminase, have lower
nelminth burdens and higher survival
rates |.1lI:I[I'r! [1|-[1l.||:|::nr| crashes, How

ever, the genotype with the selective ad

vantage may vary in different die-offs and
current research is investigating whether
there is a stable heterozvgous advantage
or an evolutionary race between host and
parasite.

The amount of heritable variation in
natural populations under direction sele
fion 15 the underlying basis for a study of
sexual selection in House Sparrows on
Lundy. If females choose mates on the

bBasis ol their bib size is this a genuineg

indicator of male fitness that is heritable

Conservation Genetics

'he Group wias reorganised and new proj-
ects were initiated in basic science and
applied research. The general goal of the
Lroup is o Improye IIrI|1-:"“-'..!II|'III;=_ il
evolutionary processes such as speciation
extinction. inbreeding and genetic drift
and to apply molecular genetic tech-

nigues to biological conservation,

POPULATION GENETICS
Aims are to determine how genetic vari
alion 1s structured in natural populations
and to identily the mechanisms that affect
its maintenance and decay. A collabora
tive study began on genetic variability in
Cameroon rainforest birds as a function of
habitat tyvpe. Over 1,000 birds of four
species were sampled. representing popu
lations on the edge and in the undisturbed
centre of the rainforest. Edge populations
may be an important source of genenc
diversity but are ignored in manyv conser
vation schemes. Also in progress are
population genetic surveys of Grey Seals
and Mediterranean Monk Seals, and col-
laborative studies with several European
institutions on genetic variation in five
endangered mammalian species.
LCollaboration with behavioural ecolo-
gists enables genetic fingerprinting tech-
niques to be used in investigating the

association between behaviour and re
ductive success. Thus ‘fingerprinting
!‘-1'-‘”:..'. used to examine large number
Baboons studied elsewhere for over
years, and o race paternity in Badg
from 14 setts. Mating in Badgers is rar
observed and the paternity of offspring
a given sett is largely unknown
Laboratory studies to investigate
consequence of loss of genetic varial
in bottle-necked populations of an Afy
satyrine Butterfly continued. The br
ing wias completed and phenotypi
maolecular analvsis will soon |"|.':,_'|r| o
[0 assess the importance of outbreed
depression in a mammalian species

being developed

Svslemaltics
L "||-l|"l'l abive studies on the svstemiati

morthern Phocid Seals PP i I
understanding of speciation and relat
ships in these animals mav be i e
N conservation, Fimancial sUp P
L ||I'-\.| [T '.'||-|'h_ 11} ||||' Svsl eI alhes
Hustards, and lor a study of relationst
between Bushbaby species in Tanzar
Bushbabies have been isolated o o
iragments throughout much of the Pl
locene Epoch and have recently speciat
Fheir ranges are now beginning to mer
i hvbrid zones as forested areas e N
\ genetical study ol this phenomenon o
H T LA | in '|:|_

Hiishiba by species

conservation of Tanzan
many of which

highly endangered

REPRODUCTIVE BIOLOGY

|.I11|1:|1'rj|'||:|][|!_'|_1.
studies of the role of insulin-like Erow
lactors (lGFs) during ovarian follico

development in the Marmoset monk

were advanced by cloning part of the ger

A\ Marmoset homaolog
probe will clarify cellular localisation ar

encoding 1GF-1

hormonal regulation of ovarian [G
gene expression. Immunoreactive inhib
-'IH'I'l'-IHt‘d-::Iirlll;..’,f.'l-:'Ju[L'ilI[lln:luns|1|i-uu:
pregnancy. Work on the type and cellul
localisation of the inhibin being produc
may clucidate its role in early pregnant
Because prostaglandin (PGF, ) activat
protein kinase C in Rats, Marmosets ai
Man, we conclude that PGF, -induc

inhibition of progesterone is mediated |

protein Kinase C, in an isoform whes

identity is now under investigation.
'he establishment of pregnancy

ruminants depends on the secretion

an interferon (IFN) by the embryon
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[T['||'-|'|;!|'-|.-s*-'| Ihis antiluteolytic protein
has been identified as a Type | IFN by
amino acid and ¢DNA sequencing, and
it bears a similarity to the adult IFN-@s.
Trophoblast IFN exerts its antiluteolytic
aetivity by inhibition of the wuterine
axviocin receptor. Isolation of a bovine
rophoblast IFN gene showed that the
promoter region was similar, but not
identical, to that ol 1 N-t. Tvpe | IFNs are
induced by viral infection: however,
although trophoblast [FN has antiviral
activity. the similarities between the viral
response clements within the hrst |20
base pairs of the promoters of trophoblast
BN and IFN-o were not suthcient to pre
dict virus inducibility ol trophoblast IFN
When a fragment of trophoblast [FN gene
:;[.|:|!.|‘_|'| -||._|-1.-:'-. 150 b 4+ 261 was
linked to a bacterial reporter gene and
transfected into a cukarvotic cell line,
expression of the reporter gene was 4-b
that of the control reporter plasmid, and
eould not be induced by poly (11{C), which
mimics induction by double stranded
B A viruses

W assay bor Lrinary |":|.';.'_I'||II'|4".|III| Wik
developed for monitoring reproductive
gycles in the Asian lephant. The identiti-
gation of oestrogen products in uring will
a=sist in the prediction of ovulation. In
the Scimitar-horned Oryvy measurement
ol 20a-dihydroprogesterone  in  [aecal
extracts showed promise as an indicator
ol ovarian events, The hormonal analysis
facilitate

of excretory products  will

caplive breeding programimes

Gamete Biology and Early Embryonic
Development

A new finding in the field of sperm devel
gpment and fertilisation was the localis-
dlion ol specilic gene expression al the
fk':..'lrlrlll:l-,z of spermatogeness in the Rat.
The gene was unigue and its expression
may play a role in germ cell development
Lectin and monoclonal antibody were
Bsed in isolating post-meiotic germ cells at
Various stages of development.

\ serine protease inhibitor of sperm
acrosomal origin was identiied. This
EnEyme may serve to regulate the acro-
some reaction of sperm-egg binding in
mammals, In-vitre fertilisation in a marsu-
pial. the( rey Short-tailed Opossum, led to
the discovery that the mode of fertilisation
resembled that of eutherian mammals.

Use of the cryomicroscope and Huor-
escent probes revealed that spermatozoa
Can remain intact during cooling and
Ireezing but undergo plasma membrane

damage during thawing. The kinetics ol
this event during the first 5-10 seconds
after thawing are being investigated.
Mouse spermatozoa were successfully
cryopreserved. Sperm motility, as assessed
by a computerised system. is being cor-
related with the results of artilicial
insemination in Pigs.

Fhe majority (90%) of preovulatory
oocytes from Marmosets could be fertilised
in vitro. Embryos formed from oocytes
incubated for 10 hours before insemi
nation cleaved faster and developed
further than those from oocytes incubated
for 5 or 24 hours. Marmoset oocyles
narthenogenetically activated by ethanol
exposure developed to the 16-cell stage,
demonstrating that considerable preim
slantation development can occur with-
out a paternal contribution. Micromani
pulation techniques are being developed
to produce androgenetic and gynogenetic
Marmaoset embryos,

The X and Y

l.ll,'l-l_'l. ted '-.II'IIIJI[ilI'Il'Ii-l.l“-i'n- 1 "'htl'l'r'_]l:' l.l'”"w-

chromosomes were
from 4- to S-cell human embryos by
means of fluorescent in situ hybridization.
I'his offers a potentially reliable method of

diagnosing severe genelic disease

Physiological Ecology

'he role of environmental signals in the
seasonal timing of reproduction  and
embryonic diapause, and the local control
of ovarian quiescence were studied in the
Bennett's Wallaby.

Red Deer and Pere David s Deer were
"\l||"l.'|'l.5"I.IJI|.I|Ii.'I.1. artificially  inseminated
and the embryos transferred to synchro-
nised Red Deer. Such technology is valu-
able in conservation breeding. In Red
Deer, investigations of the role of social
status in regulating hormonal changes
at ovulation may assist in explaining
natural skews in sex ratio. Variation in
functional genes (such as those control-
ling growth hormone and reproductive
hormoenes) in relation to phenotypic
variation in wild populations is being
investipated. Further studies include the
mechanisms whereby prolactin regulates
seasonal pelage growth and the genetic
regulation of circadian biology in Syrian
Hamsters.

COMPARATIVE MEDICINE

Applied Immunology

As part of the programme to develop
simple tests for malaria, a collaborative
study in Chantaburi, Thailand, showed

ANNUAL REPORI
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that infection in blood donors could easily
be detected. The tests used are also being
tried out in the field in Tanzania.

A study was made of the immunologi-
cal responses in human ocular infection
with Toxocara. a helminth parasite
acquired from Dogs.

Further work was carried out on tests
for leishmaniasis, a tropical disease that
infects Dogs, wild animals and Man.

Microbiology

Necrobacillosis, a disease of wild and
domesticated animals, arises from laecal
contamination of small wounds. Recent
studies showed that the causative bac-
terium. Fusohacterinm necrophorum (FNJ,
was excreted in the faeces of only a small
proportion of animals and that its infecti-
vity was greatly enhanced by other faecal
bacteria. A suspicion that digestive dis-
turbance encourages the excretion of FN
was strengthened by experiments in
which the gut microflora of Mice was
modified by the oral administration of
antibiotics. This led to intestinal multipli-
cation of small numbers of FN given by
mouth, and to prolonged faecal excretion.

Necrobacillosis also occurs in Man,
but pathogenicity experiments showed
that human strains of FN were hetero-
geneous and differed from virulent animal
strains.

Work on botulism included exper-
iments on factors that influence the pro-
duction of Clostridium botulinum toxin in
carrion, ingestion of which is a major
cause of the disease in animals. Field
work strongly suggested that refuse dis-
posal sites (landfills) are an important
source of toxins for Gulls. in which heavy
mortality from type C botulism occurs in
the UK. These birds. with their scavenging
habits, probably play a role in the disper-
sal of C. botulinum. Type C spores were
much more prevalent on landfills than in
the general environment. The spores.
together with the rotting organic matter
present in refuse, undoubtedly lead to
toxin production and to botulism in the
ever-present Gulls.

VETERINARY SCIENCE

Clinicial Studies

The range of disease encountered was
wide. A third case of spongiform encepha-
lopathy in Greater Kudu occurred this
year, the symptoms being sudden in onset.
Trichomoniasis was diagnosed in two

2]



fledgling Red Kites imported for re-
introduction. Lesions were found after the
detection of a high white cell count, and
freatment was successiul

Ultrasound was used to investigate
utering changes during the oestrous cvele
ol an Asian Elephant and to monitor the
vestrous cycle of a hand-reared Scimitar
horned Orvx as part of a project to dey elop
artificial insemination technigues

'he mechanisms responsible fi I species
variation in limb bone growth rates were
studied by comparing the morphology
ind growth kinetics of tibial growth plates

N several manimna dll SECIES.

Pathology
Une of two Koalas at Regent’s Park died
Irom disseminated lymphoma, a disease
noted as a cause of death in Koalas else-
where. A possible vira aetiology is being
investigated. A 27-year old male Orang
U'tan with spinal scoliosis was found at
necropsy to have for al encephals patiy

Y visit was made to the island of
skomer to investigate ‘puffinosis dis
case that Kills large numbers of voung
\ health

survey of Red Deer was made on the island

Manx Shearwaters each vesr

of Rhum
A collaborative project on disease in
marine mammals began in 1990. Among
the animals examined were 31 Harbous
|

: e : :
Porpoises, 17 Common Dolphins, two

Long-finned Pilot Whales, two Fuphro-
syne Dolphins, six Grey Seals and four
Harbour Seals. Parasite infestations,
mainly of the lungs, liver and stomach
were common but rarely appeared to
cause serious disease. Bacterial infections
of the lungs. associated with inflammatory

changes, were also common

Veterinary Information Systems
Fhe LYNX programme contains a data
oase ol normal haematological and serum
tiochemical reference data for over 500
animal species. Further novel COMmputer
applications include a system for analvs-
ing aggregated disease data, and the
development of algorithms for estimating

[

I.'|Z'I|1-:'r'||i|:|||;|;,_-| F'|“r.;||_|||'.|_:|-.1 i ';!a""“.'”"'ul'
investigations in, for example. marine
mamimals.

Veterinary Training Course
This six-month. twice vearly course is
designed for veterinarians working in

wildlife management, medicine and

conservation. The hrst course ran (rom
july to December 1991, The students
have come rom Mexico. India, Ethiopia
the |'|'|I!I|'l;'l'|'||_'-\. and elsewhere. The curs

culum includes capture and translocation
technigues. anaesthesia, clinical work
iparticularly at Whipsnad wildlifi
;'|_|||-_|:_'_1._ I‘.I.|I'|.|:.'_-:'r'!-'ll‘. .|II|‘| COTiseErvatioan
sirategies. Field work on the island of
Rhum and in Zimbabwe has embraced
disease |||'l.l."‘~|l:.'_.l|||l!' and conirol, assess
ment of body condition, wildlife census
technigues and hahitat and forage

analyvsis

SCIENTIFIC MEETINGS,
SYMPOSIA AND
SEMINARS

\werage attendance at the eight Scientific
Meetings held during the vear rose by my
FL vitendance rates vary considerably
-Il..l'll.IIII. L CHves g _||‘f| Mg :'I-.'--"--=.!.'---'!'EI|
time ol vear. the weather and, partic
arly, the topic of the meeting, but it is
hoped that the trend shows members to b
IMONE awanre of So0ely achiviiies and
ready 1o take part in them. and that it will
continue SUEECSIONs Irom members O
=D ECLS thal they would like o e
discussed at these meetings will be
Welome
'he main i I Ol TETe 1l.|".': IMECHInng wis
inimal hvbridization and SPECIes SIri
ture . Subs quent meeiimgs were held on
'

Animals at low temperatures Cacrrill;

studies’, ‘Global warming and the carbon

pump’, ‘Dinosaurs past and present
"

Badgers: aspects of behaviour and ece
longey ‘Chimpanzees” and ‘BSI Hriel

Reviews of the subjects of some of the
meetings continue to e published in the
Journal of Zooloqgy. The Society would like
[0 express s thanks to all the speakoers
who took part in the vear's programme

Une symposium was held during the
vedr. In association with the Mammal
sociely. This was ‘"Mammals as preda
tors’, organized by Dr N Dunstone and D
M Gorman, and held on 22 and 23
November 1991, It was a popular meet-
ing. attended by nearly 300 people, The
proceedings will be published in the
series Symposia of the Zoological Sociel iy of
Laoielon

scientilic seminars continue to be held
during the academic terms for Institute
ol Zoology staff and invited guests. The
Institute is grateful to all contributors to
this seminar series.

PUBLICATIONS cit

A
Journal ol Zoology thi
Mwelve parts of the fourmal of Zoolog w =

published during the yvear, from Volum #n
¥ B FE T2 i A i . i 1“3 ] ¥

y At 4 [oovolume S50 Farl 3. Th 2]

contained a total of 154 papers. Fewe ol

than half of these papers were submitte gt
from within the United Kingdom: the ree g
came from 2 | other countries throog h i’
the world, attesting to the Jourmal s ini
national reputation for guality of conts i
Tk ;"".-.I'I.llulll s standard T T 1
tained by rigorous review of all [ cu
submitted, which results in rejec i
ral il OWEeT <+ Review ol =0 n 5
¥l IS N cnormaons task, and the |
mad o ire exiremety gratelu |
i | v o give Lheir tim il i i
frse toy mak 1Ch fsseEssrrienl il

he profitability ol th vipersen] o byiecl 1
last vear's Annual Report was distorted |
1| nan n the method of a 1 i
LKl 11K | m IFCRTY & i i i |
il 1 1 | s % r D n |

Py ST S LIS AT | ! i
il ',I 1 1 SN I AL Fiw il )y |
cssion, although the img il eComnim n
&5 lmp 1 on hbrarmans in th |
nl 1 by budpet il L F I vel i
AP PEren |

b

Svmpaosia L=

wo volumes in the series Symposia of
cooigical Society of London were published &
by (xlord University Press during the U
vedr: Mo, 62, ‘Bevond captive breeding 8
Me=Nmreducing endangercd  marmem el i
the wild", edited by Dr | H W Gipps. and b
o, B3 I he enviFconmental I pac kit
burrowing animals and anmimal burrow |
dited by P S Meadows & A Meadows
wademic Press. who for many vears the

published the Symposia series jointly with 30

the Societv, kindly EdVE PErmussion i
‘~|I';'|II*- slock of these carly clumies 1o Jrid
ollered to Society members at a great oo

reduced rate. The iler ran with <on 1
success in the autumn of 1991, and ma

be renewed at a later date L

Zoological Record ol
Volume 127, which covers literatur
received during the period July 1990
lune 1991, was published in Decemb
1991 and contains 79.993 citation®
I'hese citations w ere obtamned from 6,494
serials and 1,278 books, both represen

Lng an increase on previous volumes

Indexing for Volume 128 isin Progres:
and at the end of 199] some 35,13




gitations had been included. A significant
sep forward was laken from the start of
this volume when some indexers began to
g i -..||-rl_||‘.|'.. maodified version of the data
gntry system lor online indexing, This
pvperiment has worked well: the staff
goncerned  are  enthusiastic,  indexing
rales achieved are as good as those under
the manual system and there has been an
gverall gain in productivity

A new hierarchy of subject and taxo-
pomic calegories wias introduced for Vol
ume 128, This new vocabulary rellects
gurrent research and opinion and takes
account of the requirements of online
searching

A review of serial and book COVeroge
has alleviated the ditheulty experienced in
phlamning su table material for !I||1-e"-..,|rl:,:

L I
A rics il
s gl FESLE

T B new serial titles have been

!:.'.LII.Illl:'! ST il :Illl'\-\.l e AT |J|..'|||1 I'\l-

|
|| shers have aereed (o send reviews
topies of books for indexing. Despite these
Increases, the actual number of published
papers within AR scope remained lairly
constant

Cooperation between BIOSIS and the
society has continued on the production
O the next volume of the Nomenchaton
Yoologicus. Details of new genera included
in Volumes 115t 1 26 of Zoological Record
Were extracted during the vear and a draft
list produced for editing by the Society

[he Society has also been aware of dis
russions taking place between BIOSIS and
Ehe International Commission on Aoolog|
Cal Nomenclature, on the development of
i List of Available Generic Names in Zoology,
based on the printed volumes of the
nomenclator Zoologicus and  the  later
machine-readable version of Zoological
Hecord, Some interest has been shown in
the publication of this List on CD-Rom:
1IN also plan to use it as the basis for a
List of Generic Names in Zoology in Use,
paralleling similar activities in microbio-
logy and botany, all under the auspices ol
/RS,

I'he Council of the Society joins with
the Board of Trustees of BIOSIS in CXPress-
ing thanks to the Director General for
acience, Technology and Industry at the

British Library Document Supply Centre,
Boston Spa, and to the Director of the
British Museum (Natural History) for the
assistance and support offered to the staff

]| :l'l.' L '.II M .;Jll Hit ||.|'||'_

International Zoo Yearbook
Volume 30 of the International Zoo Year-
hook was published in December 1991
e 21 papers in Section 1. 'Inverie-
brates’. covered a broad view of work on
terrestrial invertebrates in z200s and in the
field. It has aroused considerable interest
and is valuable reading not only for those
exhibiting species in this diffuse group but
also [or anvone interested in Ihl' CONSEer-
vation of animals. With 1 3 papers in "New
developments in the zoo world’, the list of
foos and Aquaria of the world and two
vears data on breeding in zoos and the
| 989 and 1990 censuses of rare animals
in captivity, this was a larger than usual
volume which has been received with
enthusiasm
section ol Volume %1 L1'.|'J'|_~r|1|:-,' in
preparation, will deal with “Australasian
fauna’. Contributions from Australia and
SMew Aealand, which have been commis-
sioned with the help of John Dejose, Direc-
tor of Perth Zoo. provide an interesting
commentary on the work being done to
protect the unique fauna of this region
I'he section "New developments in the zoo
world” will be more extensive than in Vol-
ume 31, and will include an interesting
series of papers on primates, particularly

parillas

['he reference section includes the list of

vertebrates bred i 1990, the census of
rare species in captivity at 1 January,
1991 and the summary of international
studbooks and world registers.

'he editor, P | § Olney. continues his
work as co-ordinator of international
studbooks, which grow steadily in both
numbers and importance. As well as a
comprehensive library ol international
studbooks the Yearbook ofice now houses
Al !I'Ii'rl:'.!"w.ll'lb.{ Illlr'llll-l.'r ol l'L'I.',,JHIZIill "-|l|li-
books, especially from Great Britain and
the USA.

AN NLUAL
1949 ]

REFOKT
159 2

LIBRARY

The Library continued to provide a full
service to members of the Society and staff
of the Society, the Institute of Zoology
and Zoo Operations Limited. The number
of members of the public applyving for
Relerence Tickets continued to increase
and over 200 new Ticket Holders were
enrolled. This contributed to the extensive
use of the Library throughout the year.
Apart from Reference Tickets the Library
also supplied photocopies to members of
the public and answered telephone
enquiries. To help deal with these an
Information Unit manned by volunteers
was set up in the Library.

The generous donation of £20,000
made by the Clothworkers’ Foundation in
the previous year permitted the establish-
ment of an Endowment Fund which will
supply an income for the Library. Money
received from the sale of duplicate books
from the Library has been added to this
Fund.

Modernisation of the Library’s services
proceeded with the acquisition of two
computers and the computerisation of the
Periodicals Catalogue. A start was also
made on the computerisation of the Book
Catalogue. When this process Is complete
it will be possible to supply printed
versions of the Periodicals Catalogue
and special subject lists from the Book
Catalogue.

The current financial stringency has
made even more important the generosity
of those who have donated books to the
Librarv. The donors this vear include; Mr
5 Adams, Dr E Barlow, Dr | L Cloudsley-
Thompson, Mr B Coleman, Professor 5 B
Day, Dr A Desmond. Mr B Fullick. Pro-
fessor K Inokuchi. Ms G Kalsi, Mr | Maisey,
Mr DS Martin, Miss F L Perry, Mr CG C
Rawlins, Mr 1 & St Paul, Dr E Trewavas,
Mr E C Zimmerman, Zoological Research
Department (TISTR), Japanese Society for
the Promotion of Science, and Studio
Editions Lid.

—y

SECRETARY



FELLOWS' MEETINGS
Two meetings were held on 12 and 13 November 1991, chaired by the ¢

Treasurer, Peter Holwell, and attended by 178 Fellows. Their purpose was

to explore how best to improve the accountability of Council and the

Officers. During the course of the meetings, David Jones, on behall of

Council, presented a paper setting out in an historical context the reasons

for the Society's current tinancial crisis. This paper is reproduced below.

Lsl: A REVIEW OF
PERFORMANCE, 1951-1991

1. Introduction

I want to give vou a summary of the main
historical events over the last 40 vears
which are relevant to the present situa

ation and I will highlight some of the
MESSges that come ||:|'|'||'__': Sirong|ly

fromm that

2. Attendances

Attendances (Fieure 1) have fluctuated
.'|||1x:-.||'l'.|!‘|:l. over the 40 vear period since
19300 In the post war years, there was
very little choice in the wav of entertain
ment particularly for families, Few people
in London had cars and public transport
had not de veloped to the pionnt where
people regularly left London just for a day
out. Attendances peaked at London in the
carly 50s, fell somewhat and were then
maintained throughout the 60s largels
by a major exhibit reconstruction pro
gramme which included the re-building ol
about hall the area of the Regent's Park
'-Il!.'.il'.I|I|'.'I"-.'-:III|I.'I|.'.'L'l.hl;'n.::.l-.ll,' was siill
something of a novelty. Its attendances
RICW as more and more people became
mobile and so the inancially strong
period of the a0ciety stretched through
the 30s and 60s. Then. a combination of
factors IIII'EIHIII'.";_' increased | ompetition in
the leisure market, reduced investment in
new facilities at London and almost no
reinvestment in Whipsnade began to take
its toll. During the early part of this period
it was Council policy to keep admission
prices down as far as possible because it
was felt that our lunctions were akin to
those of the museums and other free

public facilities in and around the apital

3. Financial Dependability

Figure 2 summarises the financial picture
lor the whole of the Societv and shows
that during this earlier period finances
were reasonably stable with some vears of
surplus and some of deficit. However, in
the late 70s following a period of relatively

high inflation coupled with increasing
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i catri butlon as a % of
Total Costs

Break cven

Years

kibour costs the overall situation began to
gecline dramatically. Hidden within this
gUMmary picture are some mporiani
points relating to the way in w hich differ
el sections ol the Socielty were alleclhing
that picture (Figure 3). London foos
performance from the early 60s to the
mid 7ils :_'-.'!!-:'I-:I-!'n.| considerable cash
gurpluses. However, the decision in the
19505 to develop the scientilic facilities
meant that these also had to be supported.

The result was that the cash 'r'_l.‘rll:':..ll:'l.l
tluring this period at London was used
largely for the development and running
Ul what was to become the Institute, 1t
§il50 of course xlj[1'iH|1'||_'I_'| other activities ol
ihe Learned Society such as the Library
At the same time it was accepted that
Il'l-|l.']1\:|.,s-.|1_' as essenftially the breeding
larm of the Society was not likely to pay
115 way and no particular attention was
given at that time to improving its finan
Cial position. The over-all result was that
the profits at London paid throughout
that period for the deficit at Whipsnade
ind for the development of the scientific
dctivities, This would not have been a
problem if capital investment in new
exhibits had continued at London with
Lhpe mMoney Comng from other sources.
However, for various reasons, privately
donated Money dried up and the povern-
meénts of the time which had been very
sympathetic towards providing capital
SUms during the development period of the
blls, were not so forthcoming in the 70s.

= London Aoo
o Whipsnade

- BOCIEY
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el contribution of the LHvISiens ( f the sociely

4. Re-assessment ol Priorities

The total financial picture for the Society
then took a dramatic downturn with two
very bad vears in 1981 and 82 (the last
recessionary period ) when attendances at
London fell to a little over 1 million annu
ally. At this point. the hirst ol a series ol
external reviews of the Society s activities
took place, in response to a request by
Lord Zuckerman to Government for help.
In 1981 Lord Chorley from Coopers and
Lybrand together with the Society's Sec-
retary, John Phillips and Martin | loldgate,
as chiel scientist, Department of the
Environment, reviewed all the Society's
activities and concluded that major new
capital investment was required at both
sites and that, pending more detailed dis
cussions with the Society, the Government
should assist.

As vou might expect, many of the rec-
ommendations made in 1951 were not
very different to those being made later
in 1987. The need lor greater income
generation from the Gates; the need for
improved marketing; better public facili-
ties; better labelling and graphics, a plea
to maintain integration of all the Society’s
activities, and, above all, the point made
repeatedly that if London was to be the
showcase of the PBritish zoo world
comparable to the best in other capital
cities around Europe, then it should be
treated in the same way as the other great
public institutions — the museums and
kew.

LML AL
19491

REPINHR I
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3. The 1988 Settlement

In 1981 the problem was that the capital
required to continue the rebuilding pro-
forthcoming. The
Government provided just sufficient to
make up the difference between what we

generated at the Gates and in the grounds

Erarmimes Wik nial

and what the operation cost to run. Even
after a relatively severe cost-cutting exer

cise at that time, potential savings from
that were not made available for reinvest-
ment in the site, Government simply
wanted costs kept down to a minimum in
order, understandably, that their own
subsidy should be as small as possible.
There was little room for manoeuvre.
Even requests for emergency repairs had
to be considered separately and the whole
situation was kept under more-or-less
continuous review with the onus firmly
on the Society to keep all costs down to the
minimum possible figure. Change, on the
London site, even in reducing the levels
of activity has considerable cost impli-
cations. It was, therefore, very clear by the
mid-eighties that we were really getting
nowhere, simply standing still. That led
to Lord Peyton, following on from Lord
Zuckerman’s  retirement, approaching
Government with a view to trying (o
obtain a maore satisfactory long term
solution. This in turn led to the 1987 dis-
cussions and the appointment of Peat
Marwick paid for by the DOE, to review
thoroughly the income generating side of
the Society's activities. Their principal
remit was not to look at the Society strate-
gically but more to advise on how attend-
ances, gate income and spend in the shops
and catering could be increased. These
discussions led to the one-off grant of
£10 million. with Nicholas Ridley, the
Secretary of State at the time, wanting a
quick solution that would essentially 'get
the Society off his hands’.

The granting of the £10 million was
dependent on the new management.
brought in as part of the recommendation.
putting forward a business plan including
a programme for development which the
Government approved. The idea was thal
£4 million of the £10 million would be
used to provide a further subsidy over the
ensuing three vears. and the remaining
£ million would be used alongside
money raised by the Development Trust
and through a lease of the Whipsnade site
to an independent operator to generate
sufficient capital for the first phase of
development of the new plan which was
to be the Mappin Terraces and the
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\quarium. The Fellowship voted in 1985
overwhelmingly in favour of these

proposils

6. What Went Wrong?

\ll the more straightforward recommen-
dations that the consultants came up with
have been carried out. notably the com-
plete refurbishment of catering and retail
at both sites, together with considerable
enhancement of most of the other public
[acilities. Many improvements i animal
accommodation and exhibition have also
taken place. most notably at Whipsnade
However, the planned major capital rede-
velopment programme was not possible
because Council were unable to ind a
compatible partner for Whipsnade and.
just at the point when the Development
I'rust was prepared to take off in its fund-
raising capacity, the current recession
began to bite. The large scale plans were
el aside and funds that were available
invested as far as possible in improve-
ments in the existing facilities.

7. The McKinsey Study

[t was clear in late 19849 that the post Peat
Marwick plans were not going to work
Lord Pevion, as Treasurer of the Society.
went back to Chris the
secretary of State at the Department of
the Environment, immediately this was
obvious and asked for a review of the
Government's decision based on the then
current circumstances. At that point
Council felt it important to undertake a
complete strategic review of the whole of
the Society's operation. not just of the
This move
ported by Government. With that in mind
Mckinsey & Company offered to lead such

Patten, then

commercial side Wis sup-

a study and did so pro bone publico. Those
discussions which were held during the
latter half of last vear involved not only
Council but also manv of the Fellows as
committee members. This led amongst
other things to the production of a clear
Mission Statement for the whole Society,
accompanied by a series of Mission Aims
which acknowledged the diversity of its
COmponents activities  but
which linked them in a single vision
Amongst McKinsey's recommendations
was the formation of the Core Group. a
small dedicated panel of people to include
representatives [rom Council, the Board
and the Executives, to do two things:
Firstly, to reduce the operating costs of
both sites and to try to bring them to
tinancial breakeven as quickly as possible:

many and
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and secondly, to look at all possible
options for the development of both sites
in accordance with the Society s inleresis
and the Mission Aims. [t was the doubts
expressed by some Council members as to
the practicality of achieving such cost
savings, which led to the "Save our Ffoo

Campaign.

8. The Source of Capital Funds

| now want to give you a lew briefl facts
and figures about capital fund raising and
the commercial perfformance over the List

few vears. First, by comparison | just want

vay in which capital was

to highlight thi

raised for the earlier development pes

of aboutl 15 vears between 1961

1976 (Figure 4). It is popularly thoug

that almaost all that money came from g

vale donations, hence the many nan

buildings that we have around the 7

However. the reality was that altho
the generosity at that time was men
able, these sums only accounted for a li
over 20% of the capital spent. with so
of the rest coming Irom imcome bl
it b))

I'he

here is that whenever we have been a

viast majormy ol comimg In

Lawernment grants

to expand and develop, Government i

£51 Operating Surplus

£0). /3m

Lrovernment

iG]

Figure 4
983 Ll

Capital expenditure 1961 -1976

Donations

3 s T
|

OV Y95m

Development Trusl

Government §

A
0% £3.5m
£3.9m

Catering Profit
1 4%
£1.3m

Figure 5

e

— Consulting
L
£1.0m

Capital expenditure 1984-199¢); £9.7 million. Where did the money come from:
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itical. Il we look at the more
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are still prominent at 4U% wil me of
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L nillion. However, what 15 notable s
th I om three other sources. Thi

" i
i NN [} I ] |

H |
i | " L1 | il
| |

1 i ] 1 T i . |
1] | I 1 ]
rl T 1 1 | §
H ¥ 1 1

I | |

L 1

U, Tolal Grants rom Government

n | I I | 1

| | | i .

( | I I
i} . ' ' '

i i Ha0 singl 1

tl I g i ' [
0 ndon Yoo and the implication il
| | I il el
5 I ChuEl | A | il
ST L1353 mil thii |
L] the gn thal w sieg] Do Cheln
difference Weet F runni ts and
i m i hat 10 vear period Tor
b i and the Society. I that Hguor
13 I pers] | Il represents a
Government contribution of about 70
ENCe per head per visitor per vea

L0, Comparative Subsidies

Just bear in mind that currently every

V=lor 1o Rew s subsidised by about L1

Matural

Museum by L 16h, and those to the Imper-

BVery  visitor to the

II <Ly
| L]

B War Museums have an L8 subsidy on
their ticket
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first thing that is interesting is the contri
bution that is now made by catering and

retail which is approaching that made

"he Government contri-
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EU MMITTEES 1991-1992

gnimal Welfare and Conservation Committee
Terms of Reference: 1o advise Cound il on matters relating to

apimal welfare husbandry and breeding records in the

Collections. at both London Zoo and W hipsnade Park

[Ji!': i |.|.|I v I relation to the wi k ol the Society s Curators

Veterinary Ofhcers and Pathe

Professor 13 A Broom, Al

| Gurnell, Fhi

Professor B G Gardiner, Phn
viarion MNixon, Phi

P S Rainbow, MA, Ph

R C Tinsley. Phn

Secredart: Marcia A Edwards, Phi, Fi8

International Zoo Yearbook Editorial Board

Terms of Reference: To advise on the content and production of the

Professor L E Lanyon 1 YVearbook.
[3 %S lonald. M M L Jackson
Georeina M Mace janeét hear, Fh
A wright. M | F keyvmer, PhiD, FRCVS, FRCPath, FIBol
A | Stevens, A ' Chrairean | M Knowles. o
IR Swineland, M rofessor G Lucas, ORE, Bs o FROS
& Lindley. maA, Dt Georgina Mace, DPhil
¥, iy 1) M Jon M, | | | C Mallinson, MiBiol, Chairmian

R | Wheater, OBE FlRiol, FRSA, FR51
Awards Commitles Secretary: P 1S Olney, BSe, Diptd, FIRIA, FLS
Term I Welereimi e & incil presents awards lor contributors

to zoology: The Stamford Raffles Award, The Scientific Medal Institute of Zoology Committee

Ihe Thomas Henry Huxley Award, The Silver Medal, The Terms of Reference: To advise the Society and the University of

Zholopical Society ol lonn Mearsh Award for Conservation

London under the terms of the Agreement between them; to
consider, and make recommendations on all matters relating to

the Institute of Zoology

Bloloey. The Zoological Society of London Frink Medal for British

Enaloeisis and The Proince Phahip Proze, Dhe Comimtios advises

Council on all matters relating to these awards Professor B C Clarke, MA, DPhilL, FES

Professor B MeNeill Alexander, Ma i | Professzor B G Gardiner, ehi, Dsg

' - L Hatesion Professor R L Gardner. sma. phn., FRS. Clairman
Professor M P Hassell, M I I Prolessor B H Green, PhD

Frol r bk Simkiss Professor M P Hassell, sua, Diehil, FRS

pirs Margaret Varley, M Professor L E Lanvon. BVSc. Fhi, MRCVS
Frofessor | B Wel el T Professor G A T Targett, Fhi, D3

El. eSSy : II-.I -|:!|"' I T "~-|'|'.':III|'. | ||'|I |!'|Il||'||,'l"-.|ll'| Ph

Professor A | Yuckerman, M " e e

gecretary: Marcia A Edwards, #hi, | v OEFICH

j ' I' - |
LT rsILy o LAPRMTOTT

Education Committee The Vice-Chancellor

[ e

ns of Reference: To advise Council on all matters relating to the I'he Principal

T

Societv's educational activities 'he Chairman of Convocation
| Barrington-Johnson

M | Coe, 1 Zoological Soctety of London

a F Evieriss, siie MA. MSe. Fii I'he President
| Hattinelh, gs I'he Trepsurer
D Huly or. BEdiHi i S1H e Secretary
fackie MacMullen, Php, MiBio
8 T Pollock, msc. rin

Mrs Susan Tunnicliffe. BSe. PGCE, CBiol. MIBiol

Director of Science

Mrs Karen Underwood, BA DipASE

Secretary: Claire Robinson. BEdiHons

Publications Committee

lerms of Reference: To advise Council on matters concerning the
F'ii"lll. A0 ol Fiod "I"}!l'-'iil Fe s r h: L seryve ds an |'¢!:II-:1[I:I| |.'ll.lil'."l.‘|
for the Journal of Zoology; to make recommendations on Library
policy,

Professor R | Berry, MA, P DSc, FRSE FIRiol, FLS, Cladrman

W N Bonner, nsc, Filiol, FLS

Brofessor A | E Cave, MD, DSc. FRCS, FLS

M | Coe, php

P Croxall. phn

A A Fincham, rhp
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700 OPERATIONS DEVELOPMENT - |
LIMITED TRUST Dir
LT
Board of Directors as al March 1992 Members as at March 1992 1%
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Suricala Suricalta suricate Meerkat y | z i I Sl
Hielogerle peervnla Dweart Mongoose | 1 2 2 J i /24 Sl
Cynictis penicillata Yellow Mongoose ! 2 }
Felis caracal Caracal Lynx } | I Peb
Felis |'|||':-||-'.I."- {eelbot i | | il
o] : Pl
s ST b TL ] | el
Felis wiwdi Margas 2 | | V-
[:.il!Z-llu Fil | LA ] i Pl
Farifiera Ieg persicd \san Lion | ! Phys
Pantfiera [igris sureafrmn Sumatran Tigers } |
Panthera paredus saxicelo Persian Leopand 3 | Ol
Neofelis meblosa mebalosa Clouded Leopard } | | Nif
Panthera onea Jaguar i u ki
Pinnipedia ||r
Saloprives coliforniames Californian Sealion 5 | I. :
iy
Tubulidentata T
Lirgpeteropuis aler Yardvark g Lo
|II-|
Proboscidea Fn
Elepfras maximiis \sian Elephant i i)

Perissodactyvla Flesnid

Eeprus burchelli antiquorum® Chapman's Zebra ] ) [
Eipinis zebra hartmoanmni® Hartmann s Mountain Zebra - | | [
""r'""" Lerresiris Brazilinn |.||'-|| 7 ! Br

Diceros bicornis Black Rhinoceros : 11 it

Li
Artindactvla ki
Lervvaa eplenipnan® Llama ; ¥ 3 2/ Ca
Larmrma qniarefoon™ Luanaco I il Ch
VI BRI VR Eneriin Vicuna ! | | | | ] i
Carnelus bactriaiees® Bactrian Came . i1 ] il /4 diiis
Priclte praclin® Pudu i i ! i A
Rernigifer tarandus Feindeer = L Ly 4 fiian
I'-'|-.II"I|J raefinstaorn 'f:IL.-;'q | | s
Giirafla camelopardalis® Crirafle 3 | 14 s
Fragelaphus enrycerns® Heorrgnon i M o [
Iragelaphus strepsiceros® Lreater Kudue . | P 1
Bubalus depressicornis® hnoa } 13 < (AR
Hos qaurps® Caanar i bidi Lrs
Hippotragus niger® sable Antelope i 32 b
Cryx ewcoryx® ‘rabian Orvx | ¥ ] 1ili }ig Ars

Domestic

i 135 |.|I'.':|.' Hl.lllh 19 | [ |
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{attle Friesian } J 2 /2
{ sl Common [ f ) 7 il
MU bian I i1
Sheep: Dorset Down f } s 03
Black Welsh Mountain | 11}
Jacoh s | 1/}
Rahhit 9 f | 4 2 7 14 5
Liuineapig L] H 7 | 20 1/10
Donkey ! 1/1
Ponv: Cream
shetland
LEprirmoor
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sphenisciformes
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Gl lome tha feprcophir s
Chinosetter frubata

b penelon

A anperica

b sibilairia

AR sibiladriv = Anpthya felinla

Wi sirepen

Wiy crecen

ABs capersis

fhis favirostris oxypen
s aciti

s batiamensis

s versicalor prna

Aitas punciiota

A ipieriuedrila

s platirla

s clypenta

Micrmaronet ta itkeias lirosirs

reida riefiena

'|._I-'-:':-|.' vl Fefie i
At fevion

!_r'.'.lllul fueliela
Srrteria mollissirma
Bicephala clargula
-1|-r- FEllis |1.III'!'I.|.H"'\-

Meraus mner IR Y,

Qi ijiirg IrRAiCEnsis jinraicensis

Ealconiformes

|H,-i VIS P 1 Faares Prarasitis

M
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Blackiooted | Jackass) Penguin

Humbaldt s Penguin

Eastern White Pelican
Brown Pelican
Lainamnil

Commaorant

=g

iehit Heron
Cattle Egret

Lrey Heron
Whdim s Stork
Warabou Stork
sacred [bis
wiarlel [his
vrican Spoonibill

ulvous Whistling Duck
White-faced Tree Duck
Cuban Tree ek
Hawaliaon Goose

Hrrl Lise
L Harten Lidodse
Carolina Duck

Ringed Teal

Maned Loose

'l.".|;_'|'-l'|

Ymerican Vvigeon

L hikos= YW igeon

Chiloe Wigeon x Tufted Duck

Crarclveall

el

Cape Teal
Sharp-winged Teal
Pintail

Bahama Pintail
Puna Teal
Hottentot el
Garganey

Arpentine Red Shoy eler
Shioveler

Aarbled Teal
Red-crested Pochard
Canvashack
European Pochard
F'ufted Duck

Eider Duck
Goldeneve

b ) FELEY

Caossa ke

Morth American Ruddy Dack

Rlack Kite (Yellow-billed race)

Black Kite
Brahminy Kite
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Torgus trachellodes
Terathoplus ecamdii s
Polyboroides typus
Hrlastprr |J|'.:l|'lr.';'rI|'.
Heterospizias mertdiomnalis

Folihieray semitorqualis

Galliformes

Penelope PUFNLFASCENS
Cray fasciofeia

Francolinug francolinus
Francolinus pordicerians
Excalfactorie chimersis
Rolliilis roglownl
Bamthusticals thoracica
Tragoparn algrea

Trevgogeen Lerming kil
Trapogeen tenminckii = T, blythii
Peecrasia macrolopia
Loptophorus irmperjanis
Grerllaes: genflus

Lophura swinhoii

Lophura ignita ignita
Crogsoptilen crossoptilon
Crossoptilon auritum
Calreus wallichi
Syrmaticus elliog
Syrmmabicns fraeeiae
seprenaticus mikado
Syrmaticus reevesii
Chrysolophus pictus
Polyplectron bicalcaraiiim
Pavo cristat s
ropeneo comgensis

Acryllieerm vuliurinum

Gruiformes

LrFRES JAponeinsis

Corees vipdo
Anthropoides virge
inthropoides paradisea
Balearica regqulorum
Ralls aguaticus

Laterallus leucopyrris

Lissotis melanogaster melanogaster

Charadriiformes
Haematopus ostraleguis
Recurvirostra avoselta
Burhinus cedicnemiis
Glareola pratincela
Vianellus vanellis
Numenius arguata
Trirteger LonLarnis
Areraria interpres
Philomeachus pugna
Larus cirrocephalus poiocephalus
Larosterna inca

Lir 1 |-'||'|'_||'|'

Columbiformes

Prerocles alchata

Columba guinea

":l'"-e'j'l.'ui,!:'r'lll.:l 8 e
Streptopelia chinensis chinensis

Phaps elegans
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Lappet-faced Vulture
Baleleur Eagle
Harrier Hawk
Grasshopper Bussard
Savannah Hawk

Alrican Pygmy Falcon

Crested Guan

Bare-laced Curassow
Black Francolin

Indian Grey Francolin
Chinese Painted Quail
Crested Wood Partridge
Chinese Bamboo Partridee
satyr Tragopan
Femminck’s Tragopan

lemminck’s = Blvth's Tragopan

Eoklass Pheasant
Impeyan Pheasand

Red Jungle Fowl
Swinhoe's Pheasant
Hornean Crested Fireback
Vhite Eared Pheasant
Blue Eared Pheasamni
{heer Pheasani

Elliot’s Pheasani

Hume s Bar-tailed Pheasant
Mikado Pheasani
Reeves s Pheasant
Golden Pheasant

Grey Peacock Pheasant
Comimon Peafow]

Congo Pealowl

Vulturine Guineafowl

Red-crowned Crane
White-naped Crane
Dermoiselle Crane

Stanley Crane

South African Crowned Crane
Water Rail

White-breasted (Red and Wit

Lrake
Hlack-bellled Bustard

Chystercatcher

A vored

Stone Curlew
Collared Pratincole
Lapwing

Curlew

Redshank
lurnstone

Roufl

Grev-headed Gull
Inca Tern
Cuillemot (Murre)

Fintailed Sandgrouse
apeckled Pigeon
Vinaceous Dove
Chinese Necklace Dove
Brush Bronzewing
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Oegphaps lophotes
(seay g Caeread
(Caeaireponn Versi i
LRcn banlfer Cegrea

Iyl bicodon

|':'.-i[f..|l.'|!ll1'|11l.'~.
(s e prlchella prilefned
Eodoriniis roseicapills

Cantari it il

Caerina [enirosiris pastinalor
NS hodlarmdlcnis

Mg mededRlEs

b 1olis swainsonii

Palytelis amtinmreplus

Palsiiels ali e FL il

y
Plat e FORES eenuRres

Pl iicercuis eximiis eximins
Pt ricnis erilinncais

Paii cplralees robesfs
Pabcervanlees rerepped i

Pelt tacula brameri manillensis
Nodornmehees Faecint s
Al cleloroglera

A auricollis

LRI o Rsrers fa FEAGIRRES Dgrenr
Mpiopsitlar rRormmciTLs

Brolioaerts pyrrioger s

Coculiformies
Tlirace persa sohadow
Tl raco persd vinegstoni
Tl raco persd coryiiaix
Biariraco eriptfiralophis
Tagiraco fearthaoi
Beirinco letncolis

Etnliiri TS 54 .|||..r|_,-: Eif Clhinensi s

slrigibormes

Tyio alba

ey bk barnoenag

Clnes feareodis

Bicho virginianues

Bieho Pecho baeba

Blbo eho furcormerins
Brabo bueho benaalensis
Bbo capensic mackinderi
Bibor iy WIS I rascens
Bubo africanus africanus
Bubo vosseleri

atotopelia ussher;
Bulsatrix perspicillaia
Nhctea scandioon

NErox movaeseelandiae
.'1.|l.. I Rixligg

At fene bram

Speotyto cunicularia
Mrix hylophila

Mrix uralensis

alrix sebuilosa

Asio ois

Asio flommens

Trogoniformes

'|1""""""!l-'! s aeiri s

Crested Figeon
Diamond Dove
Mountain Witch Dove
lerdon’s Imperial Figeon
Pied Imperial Pigeon

Fairy Lorikeet
Roscate Cockatoo (Galah |
White-crested Cockatoo
Western Slender-billed Cockatoo
Cockaticl
[
sarraband (Superb) Parrakeet
Kock Peplar (Regent Parrot)
Princess of Wales' Parrakect
Pennant's Parrakeet

Crimson Rosella)
Fastern Rosella
Grey Parrol
Cape Parnod
Ruppell's Parrot
[ndian Ring-necked Parrakeet
Hyacinth Macaw
Green-winged Macaw
Yellow-naped Macaw
Greater Patagonian Conure
Duaker (Monk) Parrakee

Orange-Mlanked Parrakeet

sehalow s Turaco
Livingstone s Turaco
Envsna Turaco
Hed-crested Turaco
Hartlaub's Turaco
White-checked Turaco
Chinese Koel

Barn Cwl

Collared Scops Owl
White-faced S s LI I
Great Horned Eagle Owl
European Eagle Onwl
[urkmenian Eagle Owl
Bengal Eagle Owl
kenvan Eagle Owl
\byssinian Spotted Eagle Owl
Spotted Eagle Owl
Mduk Eagle Owl
Fufous Flshing Owl
Spectacled Owl

Snowy Owl

Boobook Owl

Little Owl

Spotted Chle
Burrowing Owl

Rusty Barred Owl

Ural Owl

Gireat Grey Owl
Long-eared Owl
Short-cared Owl

Golden-headed Quetzal
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Caoracitformes
Dhacelr Rove e ol rietcle

i f 3 "
vlikrmol s e ol

LaraC s Cenlaiala
Tockus erythrorinc s
Tockus Mavirostrs

Dissisd d r
Rl AN S NIRRT

Linthirecoceros coromalis Cormve X Lis

= o :
Hucarstes seibeylindricns
- ;

Buceros hicornis

Hureros .'i_lul"- N

Picilormes

Pxilopoaorn prrrofopfus
Pleron ossis arcari
Pleroqiossis casharelis
Haillomius bailloni
Rarphasios tucans

VIEMIFRC TS |I||||-'|-i-C|"'-

Passeriformes

Procrias mudicoellis

PRI IS JOCR LS
Perernenodus caler beraalensis
Irena puella

Lonthera cliring

Iil'l:lill\' 'IIIIII-Il.' {} II'\'

| |l-'|il- reles CirelaTeex
Usrrodax albogularis
Csrrrdax lencody |':.|.'.'.""
Cadrrridin il toralis
Ceiirriidax chiremsis
Crarrulax camoris
{RirFlex Seveeh
Leiothrix argentisurs
Leiothrix fitea
Zosterops sp.
‘elopdeees lathani
vicerlis ',I;.'.'l .l,!|.'

L .I.I.'-'|""|'!-' JHCETTTr

Sporephila torqueola
I'\"'|':"-" r"iu'l'ulll' IACTRrsaT
Tiaris fuliginosa
IIII"""l-I-' Il COF iR

Remphocelus carbo

Remphocelus Tammigeris icteromotns

Iraupis episcopus
Crjanerpes cyaneus
Cacteus melanicterus
Linorin sar oy
II-:||'|||'|l'|I L% |!'-"rI||l'|.'r|'-.."-.

STIRELS FIROZarrIC L

" - il
SETes fhaviveniris
dsiall
Cerrdeneiis chioris

Cerrpandane 1S e iearrLs

Lirneginthus bergalis
Uraeginthus cyanocephala
Estrilda carrulescens

Lxirilda melpoda

Extrilda troglodites
Tercrracdiwe enenitenaderi
Arnandava arnardave prinicea
Trmandn v formeos

Trncndava subflava
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koookaburra
Blue-croswned Mot mot
Lilac-breasted Koller
Red-billed Hormbill
Yellow=hilled Hornbsill
Farictic Hombil
Southern Fied Hornbill

Black and White Casgued Hornbill

Great Indian Hormball
Hulous Hormbill

Fire-tulted Barbet
Hlack-necked Aracar
Chestnut-cared Aracard
sattron Toucanet
Ked-hilled Toucan

White Woodpecker

Maked-throated Bellbird
Red-whiskered Bulbul
Red-venned Bulbul

Fairy Bluebird

Crrange-headed Cround Thrsh

African (Olivel Thrush

Lommon Babbler

Whte-throasted Laughing Thrush

White-crested Laughing Thrush

Mecklaced Laughing Thrush

Black-throated Laughing Thrush

Melodious Laughing Thrsh

White-browed Laughing Thrusl

Silver-cared Mesia

Pekin Robin ( Bed-hilled Leiothiri s

White-ieye

Rlack-crested Bunting

Saffron Finch

lacarni Finch | Blue-black
Larassouit )

White-collared Seedeater

Black & White Secdeater

ooty Lrassguil

Red-crested Cardina

silver-beaked Tanager

Lemon-rumped Tanager

Blue Grey Tanage:

Red-legged Honevereeper

Wexican L'.‘.u,'niu:_'

Chopl Grackle

Shiny Cowhird

Green Singing Finch
(Yellow-fronted Canary )

Yellow Canary

Greenlinch

Mexican Rose Finch
{Hose Finch

Red-checked Cordon Blew

Blue-capped Waxhill

Lavender Finch

Urange-cheeked Waxhill

Red-eared Waxhbill

Avadaval

Strawberry Finch

Lreen Avadavat

Golden-breasted Waxhill
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Earire i Neptogn religiose
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B S seripta elegerres
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T raieny careling
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Star Finch

Zebra Finch

Hicheno s Finch

Heck's Grass Finch

Blue-laced Parrot Finch

Yirtcan Silverbill

Bengalese Finch

Moluccan Mannikin

Mutmeyp Mannikin

L hestnul Mannikin

White-headed Mannikin

Pallid Finch

Java Sparrow

Cut-throat Finch

Crey-headed Social Weaver

Weaver

Villare Weaver

Colden-backed Weaver

Red-beaked Weaver (Quele:

Foasdirigiee Fody

Weaver

Mapoleon Weaver
(Yellow-crowned Weaver|

Urange Bishop

Combassou (Green Indigo Bird)

Paradi=e Whydah

Emerald Glossy Starling

Purple Glossy Starling

Grecn | Blue-caned | Glossy
starling

superh Glossy Starling

Wattled Starling

Rose-coloured Starling

Asian Pied Starling

L ||||||:||r'|.“'\'|-\.|.'|:.'|;.'

Loth=child s Mynah

Jungle Mynah

White-vented Mynah

Crested Mynah

Golden-crested Mynah

Mepal Hill Mynah

Javan Hill Mynah

Plush-crested Jay

Ravern

Common Duack
(ld English Game Bantam
Domestic Chicken
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Stinkpot

Eastern Mud Terrapin

Scorpion Mud Terrapin

South American Ornate Terrapin
Red-cared Terrapin

European Pond Tortoise
Caroling Box Terrapin
Three-toed Box Terrapin
spur-thighad Tortoise
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Testuelo ferrmerrn
Merlacochersus tornieri
Geochelone carbenaria
Ergtrochelys imbricata
Chelus fimbriatus
Chelodime Lomghoollis
Tricnyx hurun

Crocodylia
Alligaber mississippieinsis

Winator sinensis

Sauria
r.".'rj..’n"-h IRCHS BSOS
Flearet i X PLETE L L A R
Chondrodactulus argulifes
Gekko qecko
Phelsurrne rudngascariensis
grandis 55
Colesnipx variegats
Eublepharis macularis
Aralis richardii
Corgthophanes cristalis
Laemarnctus lomgipes deborrei
Hasilizscus vittatis
Basilizcus plurifrons
Cyclura cornuta
Fgerana [grarg
Sauromalus ohesus
imphibaluris vitiiceps
Physigeathees lesweuri
Ulrowmnasiya ocelintus
[ romasiyx dedqypd s
Uromastyy hardwicki
Charrtee bo chamaeleon
Egermnia striolata
Sphenomarphus guoii
Corucia zebrata
Trachydosaurus rugosus

Tiligeea scincoides scircoldes

Tiligera scincoides Intermedin

Tiligrea rigrofutea

'.]rl.'lla:'p'r iR niei

Leiolopismra felfairii

Evmeces schmetderii

Chaleides ocellntus

Gerrhosauris major

Lacerta fepida

Trogonophis wisgerermi

Viaramus exaniiemalicus
exanthematicus

Heloderma suspectum suspect um

Heloderma suspectures clincium

Anigueis frailis

Cordeylus giganteis

Pseudocordylus microlepidotus

Serpenies

Liasis boa

Worelin spiiofus spilotus
Puython moluris dvittalis
Futhon regius

Candofa carimalus paulsoni 55
Eurecles melaens

Boa constrictor

Eryx colubrinus

Lichanura trivirgata roseofusca

din

Hermann s Tortolse
Pancake Tortoise
Red-looted Tortoise
Hawkshill Turtle
Matamata

Long-necked Terrapin
Peacock Soft-shelled Turtle

American Alligator
Chinese Alligator

Frog-eved Sand Gecko
Alrican Fat-tailed Gecko
Mamib Sand Gecko
l'okay Gecko

Giant Day Gecko

Western Banded Gecko
Leapard Ground Gecko
Richard s Anole

Abbess Lizard
Casque-headed Lizard
Banded Basilisk

Plumed Basilisk

Rhinoceros lguana

LCommon lguane
Chuckwalla

Infand Bearded Dragon
Eastern Water Dragon

Eved [Dabb [Lizard

Epvptian Dabb Lizard
General Hardwick's Dabb Lizard
Common Chameleon
Australian Tree Skink
Golden Water Skink
Prehensile-tailed Skink
Shingleback

Eastern Blue-tongued Skink
Morthern Blue-tongued Skink
Blotched Blue-tongued Skink
Five-lined skink

Round [sland Skink
Schneider's Skink

Eved Skink

Greater Plated Lizard

Eved Lizard

Wiecgmann s Burrowing Lizard
Bosc's Monitor

Reticulated Gila Monster
Banded Gila Monster
Slow-worm

Sungazer

small-scaled Girdled Lizard

Bismark Ringed Python
Diamond Pyvthon
Burmese Rock Pyvthon
Eoval Python

solomon Islands Boa
Yellow Anaconda

Boa Constrictor

I'heban Sand Boa
LCoastal Rosy Boa
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(irass Snake

Eastern Indigo Snake

Lorn snake

Black Rat Snake

Yellow Rat Snake
Radiated Rat Snake

De=ert Gopher Snake
Northern Pine Snake
Haipeviassu Lnake

Western Hog-nosed Snake

=mioobh Snake

Florida King Snake

Calilormian King Snake

Sinaloan Milk Snake
Honduras King Snake
Mexican Milk Snake
pp-cating Snaki

Peter s Long-lined Snakde
Boomslang
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liger Lnake

Innes’ Cobir:

Elack & Wihite Cobra

Hed Spitting Cobra

Monocellafe Cobra

Yl Lankan Cobra

Central Aslan Cobra

Fastern Coral Snake

Common Green Mamba

Flack Mamibaa
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Western Long-nosed Viper

Bussell's Viper

Frull Adder

Caboon Viper

Horned Cerastes Viper

Saw-scaled Viper

West Alrican Saw-scaled Vipaer

East Alrican Saw-scaled Viper

Cottonmouth Moceasin
Morthern Copperhead
Malayvan it Viper
Mangrowe Pib Vipser
Moojen s Fer-de-Lance
Western Massasauga
North Western Meotropical

Hattlesnake

Western Diamond-=-back Rattlesnake

Southern Pacific Rattlesnake
Naorthern Pacific Rattlesnake
Speckled Rattlesnake
Sidewinder

s

S T

it B gl = s [k

==

o whi o e

u
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American Spotted Salamander
Axolotl
Tiger Salamander
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Plenrodeles walrl
Salarmancdra salamwramira
Tarichir forosa

Triitrs cristans
Friteers widderis

Pachytriton sp

\nura

Bowrebirm orlenialis
Bovrebing variegeala
Rufir il
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Buls wiridic
Ceratoplirigs cranwelli
Colpstethus trinitatus
Demdrabates auratis
Denddrobates truncatis
Dyscophies antomgilli
Heplir ruibra

Hila septentriomalis
Eassing seneqalinsis
Litorie caerild

[L.itorner infrafrenata
FIixa pipar

Foliypedales denmysi
Foligedates e OFFESEif
Faicepiialns .-.';.':-.I"| FElis
Kand catesbelann
Hernga [amvrncherris
Herna pipiens
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Xenopus tropicalis

Fire Salamandet

iCrested Newt
smpoth Newn
Dog-faced Newt

Yellow-bellied Toad
Common Toad
Cane Toad

Lreen Toad

Horned Frog
Siream |':-:|‘!'_

Poison Arrow | rog
Poison Arrow | rog

I'omato | rog

Cuban Tree Frog
Running Frog
White's Tree Frog
Glant Tree Frog
Surinam Toad
s1an Iree Frog
Bamboo Tree Frog
African Bullfrog
American Bulllrog
Hice Paddy Frog
Leopard Frog
Marsh | Fog
Common Frog
Clawed Frog
Clawed Frog

lotal: Amphibians
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Leomtopitherus rosalin rosalie

Fatri Eroglodyies

Rodentia

Lgjruarrgs Tudoviclons
Doltchotis patagonum
Chinchilla laniger

Carnivora
Caris lupus

Ll S ArCLOE
Abluris fulgens
NS nEsi

Helogale parvula
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KRed-necked Wallalby

Eutled Lennur
Squirrel Monkey

Chimpanae:e
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Brown Bear
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Aris poreinus®

Cervus dvaencedr”
Gervus nippon®

Crvus elaphus
Blipluerais davidiames®
Remaifer tarandus
Hilropotes inermis

:
kalreffa core loparrailis®

;
Kalraffa carme loperdalis reticnlata®

Tripelaplins etrigasi®
Thiie s speked™
Ihigetaphus strepsiceros®
Iragelaphus curyeeras®
Boselaphus tragocamelus®
Hos oo ps®

B qrimiiens

Synceries caffer®

Bson bison

Bison bonasus
Mippotragqus equinus®
Hinpotraqs nnper:
Wobus ellipsiprigmmnus®
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Siberian Tiger
Cheetah

Californian Sealion
Commuon Seal
Grey Seal

\sian Elephant

Common Zebra (Chapman's form)

Grevy's Zebra

aiatic Wild Ass i Persian lorm)

Pracwalski's Horse
Indian Khinooeros
White Khinoceros

Wart Hog
Hippopolamus

Pyemy Hippopotamus

Llama

CanLanEc
Ractrian Camel
Arabian Camel
Reeves 5 Muntjac
Fallow Deer

xS Lleer

Hog L

Barasingha

wika Deer (Formosan form b

Bed Deer

Pere David's Deer
Reindeer

Chinese Water Deer
Girafle

Giraffe ( Reticulated)
Nyala

Sitatunga

Greater Kudu
Bogei

Milpai

{gnr

Yak

African Buffalo (Dhwarl Forest [orm)

American Bison
European Bison
Roan Anleiops
Sable Anbelope
Common Waterbuck
Nile Lechwe
Gemshok
Scimitar-horned Orvx
Arabian Oryx
Bontebok

Blackbuck
Fhomson's Gazelle
Musk Ox

Mouflon

Righorn Sheep

Donkey
Shire Horse
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Casuariiformes
CAISERErT LS CarSEnEriirs
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Ninarmiformmes
Sothoprocta perdicarsd

Spheniscilormes
\ptenadytes patagonica
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Spheniscus humboldti
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Cicomia ciconia
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Cream Pony i } i
Welsh Pony (Cream [orm | ]
Saddleback = Oxford | 3 2 10} {1/0}

sSaddleback Pig

Oxford Sandy & Black Pig 0/1
Ankole Cattle I
Belted Galloway Cattle I | /i
Hed Poll Cattle : : . e
Manx Loghtan Sheep !  J
Lincoln Longwool Sheep | I | 0y
Wenslevdale Sheep | | | | |
Hampshire "-i|||':'|'- = = | | 1/12
Wind=sor White Gaoat | 3 i | 13
Fotal: Mammals e i bi{23) 2315 74 195 b b [ 18 3%
Yustralian Cassowars 5 I |
Emu g N }
Chilean Tinamow | 7
king |'-:'|::!'_|..'||| 1 3 FERL
Rockhopper Penguin 11 | § /314
Humboldt's Penguin 1 3 | & ] W } 455
White Stork 1 3 fy i
Scarlet This o (1015
Lireater Flamingo ! 1]
Fosy Flamingo S | (1415
Black Swan H f 171
Black-neckad Swan ! | | | 11
Whooper Swan 3 ' 15113
Uoscoroba Swan 3 l
Greylag Goose ] l 1 /i
Bar-headed Goose 55 | ' 13 11/14
Emperor Goose 7 ; 2/1/1
Barnacie Csoose 23 i /21
Hrent Cioose 2 | i/
Red-breasted Coose J ; =011
Cape Barmen Coose 2 2
Egyptian Coose 5 /1
South African Shelduck R i 2/2/3
Shelduck 7 l 2 12
Carolina Duck 13 ]2 (']
Mandarin Duck 3 e
Wigeon 2 (/1
Chiloe Wigeon 5 ” (101
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Feal 2 l 2 1 /()
Crested Duck f 214
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bernpalensis
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Hrix alico sylvatica

Fochard

IMufted Duck
Lirealer "'...|.||,:-
Eider Duck
Barrow's Goldeneye

Argentine Buddy Duck

Bald Eagle

Airlcan White-backed YValture
Ruppell s Griffon Volture
Harris' Hawk

Fawny Eaglbe

boesire

Lanner Falcon

Prairic Falcon

Saker Falcon

Peregrine Faloon

Frckel s Francolin
Impevan Pheasant
HBed Jungle Fowl
Brown Eared Pheasant
White Eared Pheasant
Blue Eared Pheasant
Galden Pheasant

Common Peafowl

Hooded Crane
Sandhill Crane
Red-crowned Crang
White-naped Crane
Sarus Crane

Brolga

Wattled Crane
Demoiselle Crang
Stanley Crane
South Alrican Crowned Crane
Red-legged Serlamia

Great Bustard

{hwstercatcher
Double-striped Thid k-Knee

Dusky Lory

Foseale Cockatoo
Greater Sulphur-crested Cockatoo
[riton Cockaloo
Bare-eved Cockatoo
king Parrot
Golden-mantled Rosella
Lirey Farrol

Scarlet Macaw
Green-winged Macaw
Patagonian Conurde
Quaker Parrakeet

Barn (wl

White-faced Scops Owl
Bengal Eagle Owl
Snowy Dl

Fawny Owl
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Coraciilormes
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BErpenles

Prtiien moluris bi ilerfais
Boa constrictor

Covrallies carrins

Corallis & !_I,':.'r [ RE '-:\-'.'

f FRCFALEs R 1rin

f IS Spihi s
Themmophis sirtalis
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LEFIRSEES Cerasles

Echis carimatus sochureki

AMPHIBIANS

Caudaia

Ambysioma mexicanis

Anura
Bufo nurrins

Lerglophrys cornuta
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Laughing Kookaburra

Saffron Toucanet
Citron-throated Toucan

Mexican Bose Finch
Ked-billed Blue Ple

(ild | nglish Game Bantam
Birmingham Roller Pigeon

Il
=]

=

lotal: Birds
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apur-thighed Tortoise
Hermann = Tortoiss
Kleinman's Tortoise

Yellow-footed Tortoise

West African Dwarl Crocodils

Giant Day Gecka
Leopard Ground Gecko
Plumed Basilisk
Common [guan:
Slarmed Apama
Schneider's Skink
sand Fish

Egvptian Dabb Lizard
Carolina Anolis Lizard
Anolis Lizard

Ameiva

Bosc s Monitor

Burmese Python

Hoa Constrictor
Emerald Tree Boa
Cook's Tree Hoa
Rainbow Foa
lamaican Boa

Garter Snake

Moila Snake

Horned Cerastes Viper

Saw-scaled Viper

Total: Reptiles
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1 2 4 3 (5] 7
Deitdrohates cuardiis Black/Green Poison Arrow Frog 2 2 (/4
|"||IJ_|-' hates sp. Polzon Arrow Tree | rog 3 | (0
Hils septentrionalis Cuban Tree Frog I (001
2 har oo rus deringgsi Giant Asian Tree Frog fa 2z (004
l'otal: Amphibians ey 2 — 5 —_— 1 4
SUMMARY
Landon Lo
Number of
SpECies
{excluding
1 z i 4 3 t Fi domestic|
Marmals YiK S92 E K 124 227 1EHIF(23) 714 9z
Bird- o 7713 108 47 137 171K a7 1 39
Reptiles k53 Y 1 15 2RE1i11) 214 75
Amphibians 195 4-b 75 12 B 44 74 2h
Tidal 2451 212(5) 1304 1 84 4513 162941} 170 132
Esfimated number of fishes and invertebrates in the Collection at 31 December 1991
Fighs Approy <8 40000 2T species
Invertebrates (excluding some Comimon species A pprox 6, 300 JU species
[+ 5 colonies
Whipsnade Wild Animal Park
Mammals 15T Ghii2il 235 g | 157 a2 1 8349 i
Bircs T4 J9{8) i o 123 RE{ET] G 00 i
Reptiles 116 SERTREN] 44 22 S iz =4
Amphiblans 17 . 3 1< i
Total 27RY 158(41) 130 22 147 27305) 2575 170
Estimated number of fishes and invertebrates in the Collection at 31 December 1991
Flshes Approx 160 30 species
Invertehr tes (excluding some Commaon species Apprivg 1 50 14 species
Grand Total
Liwsl igical Sockely
ol Londen 5270 124 1634 266 530 1856 4276 448"

“Ihe species common to London Zoo and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park are counted as one.
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COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH, ADVISORY AND LRREND

CONSULTANT SERVICES

AFRC Animal Breeding Research Organization. Roslin: Collaborative
studies on seasonal control of oestrogen secretion in Deer.

\FRC Institute of Animal Physiology &> Genetics Research. Babraham:
Collaborative projects on molecular biology of trophoblast inter-
terons and on [GF gene expression in primate ovaries.

AFRC Institute for Food Research, Norwich: Collaborative evalu-
ation of new methods for diagnosis of disease.

AFRC Institute for Grassland & Animal Production, Hurley: Collabor-
ative studies on reproductive technology in Red Deer.

African Lion Safari and Game Farm Ltd/ University of Guelph, Canada:
Collaboration research on reproductive endocrinology of Asian
Elephants.

\-Areen Wildlife Park, Bahrain: Collaborative study on semen
preservation in Arabian Oryx.,

The Alistair Reid Snake Venom Research Unit, WHO Collaborative
Lentre for the Control of Antivenoms Liverpool School of Tropical
Medicine: Advice on housing and management of venomous
snakes.

\nimal Diseases Research Associatiom: Collaborative studies on
toxoplasmosis of non-human primates and diseases of red deer

Biechemical Genetics Research Group, MRC Clinical Research Centre,
Harrow: Collaborative project on the evolutionary biology of
alanine glvoxylate aminotransferase

Bou-Hedma  Reserve Health
animals. especially reintroduced Scimitar-horned Oryx,

British Divers Marine Life Rescue: Clinical advice on Beluga Whale
in the Black Sea.

Centre for Population Biology, Imperial C ilege at Silwood Park: Colla-

Trinisha: assesemient of Resepve

borative study on population genetics of Andricus quercuscalicis

Chapultepec Zoo, Mexico: Advice and assistance on Giant Panda
artificial insemination.

People s Republic of Ching Ministry of Forestry (with International
Union for Conservation of Nature and Natural Resources/'World
Wide Fund for Nature/Morth of England Zoological Society
Marwell Zoological Trust/Longleat/Glasgow Zoo): Continuing
monitoring of reintroduced Pére David's Deer.

Commizsion of the European Community — DG XI: Advise on zoo and
CITES legislation.

Corporation of London Veterinary Department and Animal Quarantine
Station: Advice on identification, handling and management of
r-.-;1|||v-.

Ditlgety PLC and Anglia Higher Education C llege. Cambridge: Colla-
borative research on chemical communication in mammals.
Doha Zoo, Municipality of Doha, Qatar: Advice on management of

the national zoo for the Qatar Government.

Lundee Institute of Technology (Department of Mathematical and
Computer Sciences): Collaborative project on novel methods of
analy SINE space-tume movements and associations of individ-
uals in free-ranging populations.

Edward Grey Institute of Field Ornithology, University of Oxford:
Collaborative studies on puffinosis” in Manx Shearwaters,

Estacion Biolegica de Donana, Ministerio de Educacion iy Ciencia,
Spain: Collaborative research on genetics of Gray wolves.

Faith Foundation: Advice and assistance with Rhino Project in
Tanzania.

German Primate Centre, Gottingen: Collaborative research On pri-
mate ovarian lunction and development of non-invasive tech-
nigues for monitoring reproductive status in exotic species.

Glaxo Research PLC: Consultant advice on in vitro fertilization.

Hallam Medical Centre, London: Collaborative study on human
granulosa-luteal cell lunction.
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HM Customs: Housing and advice on identification of reptiles

Hospital for Tropical Diseases, London: Collaborative evaluat
new methods lor diagnosis of disease: laboratory servie
testing of serum for diagnosis of Toxocariasis.

Institute of Biochemistry, Veterinary University, Vienna: (
orative studies on faecal steroid hormone analvsis in ey
species

Institrte of Terrestrial Ecol i vonkswood 1 Iny estigations of h
metal and organochlorine levels in avian tissues; ( Bang
Collaborative research on population genetics of the Al
Puthin and genetics ol Otters and Seals

Institute of Environmental

! |-'-'I-:'||'-'|l il 1|..||I-'-'.I'.'|'-I|'_-||| i

Collaborative research on ‘puffinosis’ in Manx Shearwater

Institute de Zoologia, Universidede do Porto, Portugal: Collabor
studv on population genetics of Rabbits in Portugal and
UK.

frtermational Instiiute of Parasitolegy: Collaborative researct
Mountain Gorilla parasites

fohn Radcliffe Hospital, Oxjord ( Nuffield Department of (
Wedicine ): Advice on housing and management of venon
"'\-!l-'ll‘l.l_"'\-_

joint Nature Conservation Committee; Health assessment of
Kites for reintroduction

fenga Wildlife Service: Assistance with funding and organiz
ol comnservation programmes for Black Rhinoceros and Al
Elephant: veterinary services

et i Hig

King s College | KQC |, London { Department of
Riology ): Collaborative investigation of GnRH distribution ir
hypothalamus of the Naked Mole-rat: | Depsartment of P
ology): Collaborative research

Wallaby

Limassol Zoo. Cyprus: Advice on new exhibits

on melatonin binding in

London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine; Collaborative e
ation of new methods for dingnosis of disease: collabor:
research on Mountain Gorilla protozoa

Wi |.|||.'||_||- Lamd Llse Research Imsiitute, | dinburgl: Collaboral

project an the |f|."|.l.'||l;'-r1'||.'!!| ol =easzonality and -'l-|i:'|r.|l:.'

technology in Red and Pére David's Deer

MAFF Central Veterinary Laboratory, Surrey: Collaborative st
on spongiform encephalopathy in zoo Antelopes and on vi
diseases of birds (inc ||_||_1|[|-_|_=; '|1;||ri”.; yois .

MAFE

project on reproductive technology in Deer

Experimental Husbandry Farm. Hereford: Collahoral

VIAFF Fisheries Laboratory, Burnham-on-Crouch: Collaborative
search on organochlorine and heavy metal levels in cetace
~eals and Otters,

MAFF Veterinary Investigation Unit, Polwhele: Collaborative s
on pathology of cetaceans and Seals.

Marwell Zoological Trust : Assistance with the development of arl
cial breeding techniques; collaboration with studbook ke
tor Karvotyping Okapi in British Zoos.

Meat & Livestock Commission Pig Breeding Centre: Collabora
project on sperm maotility.

National Avian Research Centre, United Arab Emirates: Advice
nutrition of Bustards.

Nirtional Musenrms af .F':-I'rT_HI'I': l.'I.I||':!|:I|Ir;1|_i1,'¢' research on geneis
Hyenas and African Hunting Dogs.

National Wildlife Research Centre, Taif and The King Khalid Wikl

Research Cemtre, Thumamah ( Saudi Arabia ): Collaborative stud
on genetic management of the Arabian Oryx using DNA fing
printing, and on Gazelle reproduction,
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sational “oo, Washington DC/University of Oxford: Collaborative

. pesearch on endocrinological aspects of behaviour in the
African Wild Dog.

satiral History Museum, London: Collaborative studies on parasitic
diseases of free-living and captive wild animals and on the life
Ristory and |ﬁ;ir;|hillh|L|gj.' of cetaceans.

Nature Conservancy Council: Health assessment of Red Kites for
reintroduction: genetic assessment ol hybridization between
Red Deer and Sika Deer: genetic analysis of Scottish Wild Cats;
Fe'i“-ll”[i”“ genetics of Pine Martens.

Mature Conservation Bureau Lid: Collaborative project on system-
atics and r:u||'.||.|i.;|l:|m|. genetics of Bustards,

Narwegian Institute for Nature Research: Collaborative project on
gpatial and temporal heterogeneity in performance of Red Deer.

Palice and Local Autherities; Advice and assistance on identili-
gation, handling. management and capture of reptiles.

Palijtechnic of East London: Collaborative study on protozoal infec-
ions of reptiles.

(hteen Mary & Westfield Colleae. London: Collaborative r-.luq[jl.' 01
yariation between species in the cell kinetics of the growth plates
of limb bones.

Rehieenr Mary & Westfield College, London and University of Leiden:

Collaborative project on genetic drift in the African Satyrine
B||I1L':|'I|j-.-

Regiomal Health Authorities: Laboratory service for testing of serum
for diagnosis of Toxocariasis,

Ritino Ark/ Overseas ||:|-|"|'|"II4I|||.Ir?r'.'II' Vlministration: Advice and assist-
aince with Stage [l fencing of Aberdare’s National Park. Kenva,

Roya! Free Hospital; Collaborative evaluation of new methods lor
diagnosis of disease: research on comparative anatomy of the
Bppendix.

Rayal Hollovway & Bedford New College. Egham: Collaborative study
on mortality of the Common Dormouse.

Rawjal Society for Nature Conservation, Jordan: Veterinary assistance
with the management of Arabian Oryx.

Ryl Society for the Protection of Birds: Health assessment of Red
Kites for reintroduction; investigation of Mute Swan mortality
In Orkney: supplementary feeding of Kestrels to control Little
Tern predation.

v RSPCA Seal Assessment Centre. Docking: Collaborative study on

pathology of cetaceans and Seals.

Rawal Veterinary College: Collaborative study on genetic relation-
ships of domestic Dog breeds: collaborative project on inter-
ction of parasites, plane of nutrition and host genotype on
Fesistance to disease; (Field Station, Hatfield): Collaborative
research on ultrasound monitoring of reproductive cycles.

SAC Veterinary Investigation Centre, Inverness: Collaborative study
bn pathology of cetaceans and Seals.

SE Mary's Hospital, London: Collaborative project on retroviral
Infections of wild animals.

SEottish Natural Heritage: Collaborative research on spatial vari-
;n{licm in diseases and performance of Red Deer on the Island of

um,

Sew Meammal Research Unit. l’_]un[:lrj.:!_:rr: Collaborative studies on the
life history of the Harbour Porpoise, on organochlorine and
:I"“"“'_'*' metal levels in cetaceans, Seals and Otters and on gene
How in geographically structured Seal populations.

Sﬂll'.'q' & Vision Electronic Systems Lid, Sheffield: Consultant advice
o use of sperm tracker.,

S"i-i-[”""‘ & McEwan (Southern) Ltd: Collaborative studies on botu-
ism,

AFPENDIX 5

State Institute for Public Health and Environment, Bilthoven: Colla-
borative research on virus diseases in cetaceans and Seals.

State University of Utrecth: Collaborative research on virus diseases
in cetaceans and Seals.

Swigs Centre of Scientific Research, Abidijan, Ivory Coast/Stirling
University: Collaborative project on faecal steroid analysis in
free-ranging Maxwell Duikers.

Tshabalala Wildlife Sanctuary, Department of National Parks and
Wildlife Management, Zimbabwe: Development of a wildlife devel-
opment plan.

I'simbazaza Zoo, Madagascar: Advice on captive Lemur husbandry
and medicine.

Turkey Ministry of the Environment: Advice on health and welfare of
a Beluga Whale in the Black Sea.

Turks and Caicos Ministry of Health and ‘Into the Blue' Project: Advice
on translocation and rehabilitation of captive Bottle-nosed
Dolphins to the wild.

University of Aberdeen: Collaborative research on Lyme borreliosisin
Red Deer; ( Department of Zoology): Collaborative study on popu-
lation structure of European Pipistrelles.

University of Birmingham Medical School { Department of Pathology ):
Collaborative research on evolutionary physiology of Tam-
Horsfall protein.

University of Bradford { Department of Biomedical Sciences ): Collabor-
ative project on control of hair growth in Deer.

University of Bristel { Department of Zoology ): Collaborative research
on genetics of Munjacs and Red Foxes, and on population struc-
ture of European Pipistrelles.

University of California (Los Angeles): Collaborative project on
systematics and population genetics of mammalian carnivores.

University of Cambridge ( Department of Anatomy): Collaborative
study on pineal melatonin secretion in mammals; ( Depariment of
Genetics): Collaborative project on selection of allozymes in
ungulate populations: (Department of Zoolegy): Collaborative
studies on individual fitness and population demography in
ungulates and on genetics of Bat-eared Foxes.

University of Cape Town (Department of Zoology): Comparative
endocrine studies of African Mole-rats.

University of Liverpool: Collaborative evaluation of new methods
for diagnosis of disease; ( Department of Pathelogy): Collaborative
study on pathology of cetaceans and Seals.

University of Manchester { Medical Information Group, Department of
Computer Science ): Collaborative research on representing clini-
cal indings in r|}ia_|:~|:1|nlugiq‘i;l| information svstems.

University of Munich: Collaborative study on genetics of Brown
Bears., _

University of Nottingham School of Agriculture {Department of
Physiology & Environmental Studies): Collaborative project on
trophoblast interferons.

University of (Nsztyn. Poland: Collaborative research on Roe Deer in
Mazuria.

University 1|_||r|:,'|_1,:||’nrrf { Department of Loology ): Collaborative research
on social organization of Badgers.

University of Southampton (Department of Human Reproduction):
Collaborative study of the human and Marmoset corpus [utewm.

University of Rome (Department of Animal and Human Biology ):
Collaborative research on genetics of Gray Wolves.

University of Virginia { Department of Biology ): Collaborative project
on biological clocks in Hamsters.

University of Zurich { Anthropology Institute and Museum ): Collabor-
ative study on reproductive endocrinology of Goeldi's Monkeys.
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Veterinary Research Laboratories. Stormont: Collaborative research
on virus diseases in cetaceans and Seals.

Voleane Veterinary Centre. Morris Animal Foundation. Rwanda:
Collaborative study on Mountain Gorilla parasites.

Wildlife Conservation Research Unit, Oxford: Collaborative study on
conservation and biology of canids.

World Health Organization: The Institute of Zoology is a collabor-
ating centre for malaria reference and research. comparative
medicine and pathology of non-domestic vertebrates and repro-
duction.

World Wide Fund for Nature ( UK, International. Fast Africa ): Advice
and assistance with Kenya Black Rhino, Laikipia Elephant Proj-
ects (kenyva) and reintroduction of Sahelian species. Niger.

Zimbabwe Department of Parks and Wildlife: Assistance with staff

funding (Rhino Rescue).

Government departments, Research institutes, Universities, 7 orbongical
collections amd Veterinary practices fnmvolved in zoo and wildlife medi-
cine in the UK and abroad: Veterinary advice, referrals of clinical
cases and .‘\-|'-'L"'.'i|'!'|L'|'|F for POsSE IMOrtem invest |!_'||E||_il'lj]_

Loos ( National arnd [International ); Monitoring reproductive status in
exotic species

Representation on Scientific Societies, Zoological, Conservation

and Research Organizations

Whether in an individual capacity or as representatives of the

Society, members of staff play an active role in many organizations

concerned with animal management, conservation. the publi-

cation of specialist journals, and other research activities,

Agricultural and Food Research Council: Professor A P F Flint { Mem-
ber. Animal Research Grants Board and Animals Studentship
Panel)

AFRC Institute of Animal Physiology and Genetics Research:
Professor A P F Flint (Visiting Scientist)

American Association of foological Parks and Aguariums: Dr | R
Ginsberg (Equid Taxon Advisory Group -TAG)

Animal Welfare: Dr M A Edwards ( Advisory Editor)

."I?i'n!IIFl:'lfJ-!'Jti.'lgll' Advigory Panel: Dr ] H W ( sipps (Convenor, Scientific
Co-ordinating Committee); Dr P M Bennett; DrG M Mace: Dr | K
Kirkwood: Dr H | Shaw (Members, Scientific Co-ordinating
Committee)

Association of Veterinary Anaesthetists: Mr R A Kock (Committee)

British Andrology Society: Dr W V Holt (Secretary)

British Deer Society: Dr A S I Loudon (Chairman, Scientific Advis-
ory Committee)

British Veterinary Journal: Professor A P F Flint ( Advisory Board)

British Veterinary Zoological Society: Mr A A Cunningham; Dr | K
Kirkwood; Mr R A Kock (Council)

British Wildlife Rehabilitation Council: Dr | K Kirkwood (Treasurer)

Brooke Hospital for Animals, Cairo: MrD M Jones (Chairman )

College of Williem and Mary, Williamsburg: Sir Cyril A Clarke
(Honorary Doctor of Science)

Conservation Corporation, Phinda Project in South Africa: Mr D M
Jones (| Member)

Department of the Environmment; Mr D M Jones; Dr | K Kirkwood: Mr
R A Kock (Secretary of State’s List of Inspectors under the Zoo
Licensing Act 1981

Digit Fund UK Dr B E Hastings (Trustee)

Eurapean Cetacean Society: Dr T Kuiken (Contact person for Pathol-
ogy Working Group)

European Community Association of Zoos and Aquaria: Mr DM Jones
{Zoological Society representative)

S5h

Fauma and Flora Preservation Society: Mr D M Jones { Chairm Mole
Hawk and Owl Trust: Dr | K Kirkwood ( Scientific Committe Be
Howletts & Port Lympne Zoo Parks: Mr D M Jones | atil
Member) B
Internationad Recovery & Management Committee for Golder e
Lion Tamarin: Dr G M Mace (Member) Nati
International Union for Conservation of Nature and Natural R Nt
{ Species Survival Commission ): Dr P M Bennett (Captive B Nory

and Reintroduction Specialist Groups): Mr A A Cunnins A
(Captive Breeding (Invertebrate) Specialist Group); Mis

(o
Dixon (Antelope, Parrot, Captive Breeding and Reintrod ial
Specialist Groups: Zoological Society representative on Lk Prim

mittee); Professor A P F Flint (Captive Breeding Group): D W
Gipps (Captive Breeding. Reintroduction and Rodent Sp (c
Groups): Dr | R Ginsberg (Deputy Chairman, Canid S C;
Group: Member. Equid and Reintroduction Specialist ( Prog
Dr | K Kirkwood: Mr R A Kock ( Veterinary H|'||_-|_-|,|]|'-.| Loy
L M Jones (Asiatic Elephant. Antelope and Captive B Radi
Specialist Groups): Dr A S 1 Loudon (Deer Specialist Gr Repr
G M Mace (Captive Breeding and Reintroduction Spea g

Groups | Rowi
intermational Unton of Direciors of '|'|I.'-:|'.'| ad Geagrelens: NMre Dy Hﬂ.!ﬂ
[ Zoological Society Representative) iF
Jersey Wildlife Preservation Trust: DrG M Mace ( Scientific Ad Sach
Committee) Trap
foint Marnagement of Species Group in the British Isles: Dr Trus
Bennett (Executive Secretary) fe
joirt BRSPCA/UFAW/FRAME/BY A |.'|.ll|.,'-\.||:.rl|'.“- o Reinien i
A W Sainsbury (Housing of Rabbits Group) m
foint (UK) Elephant Management Group: Ms C A Niemuller-- 0
(Member) Vi
fowrnad of Animal Ecology: Dr S D Albon ( Editor) [lmfy
fowrnal of Clinical Laboratory Analysis: Dr A Voller { Editorial I
fowrnal of Clinical Pathology: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board) P
fournal of Comparative Pathologiy: Dr G R Smith (Chairman. | M
ial Board) il
fournal of General Microbiolagy: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board G
Journal of General Viralogy: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board) V
Journal of Immunoassay: Dr A Voller ( Editorial Board) n

Journal of Immunological Methods: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board D

fournal of Medical Microbiology: Dr G R Smith (Editorial Board G

Journal of Physiology and Pharmacology, Krakow: Professor P
Flint (Editorial Board) ol

journdal of Reproduction ard Fertility: Professor A P F Flint (Ediv A
Boardk: Dr H DM Moore (Council of Management)

fournal of Virological Methods: Dr A Voller ( Editorial Board)

Linnean Society of London: Dr M A Edwards (Editorial anc
gramme Committees)

Mammal Society: Dr | HW Gipps (Council Member)

Marine Mammal Research Steering Group: Dr T Kuiken (Mem:

Marwell Zoological Trust: Mr D M Jones (Trustee); Dr G M
{Member. Scientilic and Animal Management Committe:

Medical Research Council: Professor G H du Boulay (Member
Board )

Medicina: Dr A Voller ( Editorial Board)

Natienal Federation of Zoological Gardens of Great Britain and I
Dr P M Bennett (Secretary, Conservation and Animal Mar
ment Committee; Chairman, Parrot Working Group: Mer
Invertebrate Working Group): Miss A M Dixon: Mr R A b
{Conservation and Animal Management Committee); Dr
Mace (Joint Management of Species Committee)
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sfaleenlar amd Cellular Endocrinology: Professor A P F Flint (Editorial
Board) |

| Hospital for Nervous DIseases, London: Prolessor G H Du
Boulay | Honorary Consultant: Trustee, Queen Square Develop-
ment Foundation)

aational Trust: Mr R Coates (W hipsnade Advisory Committee)

seroradioloqy: Professor G H du Boulay ( Editor-in-Chief)

it nfaeeqian Institute for Nature Research: Dr 8 D Albon (Scientific

Adviser)

't Onford Reviews of K productive Biology: Professor A P'F Flint {Editor-

ial Board)

NMpeimmete Society of Great Britain: Dr P M Bennett (Conservation

Working Party); Dr | K Kirkwood (Council): Dr G M Mace
[Gaptive Care Working Party): Mr A W Sainsbury {(Council:
Captive Care Working Party)

Prograrme for Appropriate Technologyy in Health ( PATH ): Dr A Voller
(Technical Advisory Group)

Radioloqical Research Trust: Professor G H Du Boulay (Director)

Reproductive Research Information Services: Dr A S | Loudon: DrH |
Shaw (Management Board)

Rowal Fritomological Society of Londoen: Sir Cy ril A Clarke (President)

Rowal | Dick) School of Veterinary Studies, Edinburgh: Dr GG R Smith
Bxternal Examiner in Veterinary Microbiology)

Sociey for the Study of Fertilitg: Dr H D M Moore (Committes)

Traperimedizin wnd Parasitologie: Dr A Voller (Editorial B ard )

Trust for Research and Education in the Biology of Reproduction: Pro-
[Ezsor A P F Flint (Chairman )

University of Bristol: Dr ] K Kirkwood (Visiting Lecturer, Depart-
menis of Animal Hushandry and Medicine)

University of Kent: Dr G M Mace (External examiner in Conser-
vation Biology|

University of London: Dr C M Argo: Dr A 8 [ Loudon; Dr H | Shaw
(Course Lecturers, Department of Biology, University College):
Professor G H Du Boulay (Emeritus Professor of Radiology.,
National Hospital for Nervous Diseases); Dr B R Brinklow
{(Honorary Lecturer, Department of Physiology, King s College:;
Course Lecturer, Department of Biology, University College:
Visiting Lecturer, Department of Biomedical Science, Polytech:
fic of Central London): Mr A A Cunningham (Visiting Lecturer,
Department of Pathology and Parasitology, Roval Veterinary
College): Dr C G Faulkes (Visiting Lecturer. Department ol
Phvsiologv, King's College |[KQC); Course Lecturer, Department
of Biology, University College); Professor A P F Flint (Member,

Academic Advisory Board in

Biology: Member, Board of

APPEMNDIX 5

studies in Biology: Visiting Prolessor in Biology. University
College: Visiting Professor, Biosphere Sciences Division, King's
College [KOC]): Ir W V Holt (Honorary Lecturer in
Physiology, King's College |KQC]): Mr D M Jones (Member,
Board of Studies in Biology); Dr | K Kirkwood (Member, Board
ol Studies. Roval Veterinary College): Dr G M Mace: Dr H F
Stanley (Course Lecturers, Intercollegiate Lecture Courses);
Dr H D M Moore (Honorary Research Fellow, Department of
Biology: Visiting Lecturer. Department of Zoology. University
London); Dr A Voller iReader in Immunology of Parasitic
Diseases, London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine;
Council Member, London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medi-
cine): Dr G E Webley (Honorary Lecturer in Physiology, King's
College [KQC]: Course Lecturer, Roval Veterinary College and
Department of Biology, University College)

University of Manchester: Dr P M Bennett (Honorary Research
Fellow, Department of Computer Science)

University of Nottingham School of Agriculture: Professor A P F Flint
iSpecial Professor of Molecular Biology )

Vaccine: Dr A Voller (Editorial Board)

Veterinary Deer Society: Mr R A Kock (Editorial Committee)

Veterinary Invertebrate Society: Mr A A Cunningham (Secretary)

Veterinary Research Club: Dr G R Smith (President)

Volcano Veterinary Association Advisory Committee: Dr B E Hastings
(Scientitic Committee)

Wildlife Link: Miss A M Dixon (Member: Zoological Society
representative)

Wisconsin Regional Primate Research Center, University of Wisconsin,
USA: Dr G E Webley (International Affiliate Scientist)

World Association of Wildlife Veterinarians: Mr A W Sainsbury
(Secretary)

World Health Organization: Dr A Voller (Member. Expert Advisory
Panel on Parasitology: Member, WHO/IULS Sub-committee on
Standardization of Reagents for Enzyme Immunoassays)

World List of Scientific Periodicals: Mr R A Fish (Council Member})

The World Parrot Trust: Dr P M Bennett {Board of Management)

World Pheasant Association: Dr P M Bennett; Dr G M Mace (Scientilic
Advisory Commitiee)

World Society for the Protection of Animals: Mr A W Sainsbury
(Scientific Advisory Panel)

World Wide Fund for Nature: Dr R A Brett (Project Executive,
Rhinoceros Conservation Programme, Kenya); Mr D M Jones
iChairman, Conservation Review Group, UK



AMENDMENTS TO THE REGULATIONS

The following amended Regulations, effective from 1 [anuary
1992, were made by Council pursuant to the power granted in
Article 8 of the Charter:

ENTRANCE FEES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS
L10 out of the annual subscription of £40 shall be remitted in
the case of Ordinary Fellows resident within the British Isles
but outside a radius of 30 miles from Charing Cross

& L20 out of the annual subscription of £60 shall be remitted in
the case of a Scientific Fellow who does not wish to receive the
fowrnal of Zoology

% L5 out of the annual subscription of £ 30 shall be remitted in
the case of Associates resident within the British Isles but out-
side a radius of 50 miles from Charing Cross, save for those
\ssociates who qualify for student remission under Regulation
& (vi) lor whom the annual subscription shall be half the full
rate

12 Overseas List

(i) An Ordinary Fellow who is resident outside the British [sles at
the time of his election shall be registered on the Overseas List
in which case £25 out of the annual subscription of £40) shall
be remitted.

(ii) An Ordinary Fellow who takes up residence outside the
British Isles after election or intends at any time to reside
cutside the British Isles for a period of more than twelve
months shall be transferred to the Overseas List. During his
residence abroad, £25 out of the annual subscription of £40
shall be remitted. except in respect of the vear in which he
leaves the British [sles

i) A deientific Fellow who is resident outside the British Isles at
the time of his election shall be registered on the Overseas List.
IFhe does not wish to receive the Journal of Zoology, £45 out of
the annual subscription of £60 shall be remitted,

) A Scientitic Fellow who takes up residence outside the British
[sles after election or intends at any time to reside outside the
British Isles for a period of more than twelve months shall be
transferred to the Overseas List. If he does not wish to receive

the Journal of Zoology during his residence abroad, £45 out of

FINANCE

The Society's deficit for the vear is £2.03 million compared with the deficit for the previous year of £2.0)
Transactions relating to particular funds, which are described in note 1(e) on pages b2 and 63, are transier
from or to the appropriate fund, leaving a deficit on the General Fund only, of £0).34 million. The (
balance brought forward at 31 March 1991 of £0.96 million has decreased to £0.62 million,

The total number of visitors to both zoos is down by 7.5% over the corresp: nding fin
calendar year basis, 6% fewer visitors came to both Zz0o0s in 1991 (an increase

London of 10%) as compared with 1990).

results of all the Society's activities

The Society wishes to express its thanks to all those who contributed to the Society and its two zoos, by wa)
grants lor purchasing fixed assets, numerous research funding grants and individual legacies and donations.
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The income and expenditure of London Zoo and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park are accounted for in the Sociel!
wholly owned subsidiary company Zoo Operations Ltd (Z0L). The Financial Statements show the consolidat

audited accounts of 701,

3

e

. including those of ZOL. Following the Financial Statements are shown |




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s consolidated Revenue Account
“ for the vear ended 3 1st March 1992

0 Year ended Year ended
k5 Mote b st March 1992 31st March 19%9]
£ 000s £'000s
Income . 12.634 12,338
ne
) 16 GB1R 0737
Expenditure £ | h.B1B 16,92,
ilrﬂ'r:ll':n:uh‘li!ri[ lor the year i { 3.984) (4,584)
3 1) 3,
Incame from investments %2 P, }
L |I]1L'Tl-"' |'.'.;':'..|"-il.' Iy 15 ] (399
et 1,123
(3.4%96H) (3.461)
o = 4 1 5 I.". ' ]
Government Lirant ; L .<f6 4 1.383
i 10133 POTE]
Delicit for thie vear (200330 (2.0
Exeeptional items L o
Grants for purchasing tixed assets r 518
i) i
Surplus/(dehicit) on sale ol assets il (S
=141
Re<tructuring costs 539
{ 2 k(] ], 504
Extraordinary item
o
Curtailment costs b (1.254
- ! = s P i = 3 )
Excess ol |_'~.'||-|_'|||.‘||l;||r|,'1:!1.1'!'III-;'I.II1I:‘ (3./14 1.56
Appropriations from/(1o) specific lunds R
. N
From Endowment Fund (1 b 2635 2. 25
! 17 | ih5]}
From /(to) Development Fund ! ] e
: : 1 (10 3
From/(to) Other Designated Funds In h
! ELE 17
From Building and Equipment Fund 149
; (343) 451
- y 050 S0
General Fund balance brought forward
4 : AL G54
General Fund balance carried forward e
The notes on pages 6.2 to 74 form part of these hinanc jal statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet .
as at 31st March 1992 S
or
Sobe | R
£ (s LM

Fixed assets

[angible assets 4 2 4R7 Jel |
Investments | (] K
3, 490) el
of
Current assets In
Stocks 1 546 [n
Debtors 12 g ) In
Cash at bank and in hand 1.590 k:
3. [1H2 - Net
Creditors: amounts falling due in
within one year ] 3 (2. 595)
nve
Nel current assets LT P
[
Total assets less current liabilities } 5T L
: ot
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one vear [ 4 (12}
el
I 45
Wil
Funds 15
Endowment 16 1 132 ina
Development 17 01 L
(ther l.||."‘-i':'_II::I|'-.| | & 1015
Building and Equipment 1 4 19 -
General 616
Jeo
3945 :
lhe

Approved by Council on 1 3th July, 1992
PETER HOLWELI
| reasurer
SIR JOHN CHAPPLE

President

The notes on pages 62 to 74 form part of these financial statements,

Ful )




onsolidated Cash Flow Statement
or the vear ended 3 1st March 1992

et cash outflow from operating activities

teturns on invesiment and servicing

of finance
Interest received

[nwestment inoone

Interest element of finance leases

Bank interest paid

yel cash inflow from returns on

investments and servicing of inance

nvesting activities

Purchase ol fAxed nssels

|}i:-..='| sl of ixed assets

Purc hase ol iInvestmenits

Sale of mvestments

wel cash outflow from im esling activities

‘inancing

vel cash outflow before financing

Capital element of finance leases

‘el cash outflow from financing

Jecrease in cash and cash equivalents

'Ill.'llI Hes (0 pages Bt

"4 form part of these financial statements.

Wote

24

149493
£ (005 £ 000
(3.400]
1k
82
(£
i1
150)
[EL )
{r1)
h 3
(R(D]]
(3,521]
(14}
{141
ERELY

k

g

MOoA M
N A

ATEMERMN

ol
I

[ 4% ]
£000s

(1,833)

LT

24
{7}
(1}

5

(3.193)

(3,860)

(3,875)
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Report of the Auditors
O THE COUNCIL OF THE Z0OLOGICAL SOCIETY OF LONDON

We have audited the financial statements on pages 39 to 74 in accordance with Auditing Standards

I'he financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Society has suffered a deficit of £2,033.0000n the v

31st March, 1992, and continues to incur operational deficits. In view of such persistent operational deficits and the level of ¢

resources available to the Society, the level of operations is being curtailed significantly. A provision of £1.254,000 has been mad

estimated costs of curtailment of part of the Regent's Park area. At this time it is not possible to determine with reasonable cert

ultimate costs of this curtailment. The appropriateness of the going concern basis is dependent upon the avoidance of further

liabilities arising on the curtailment and the commencement of profitable operations subseguently

should the geing concern basis prove to be inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made to reduce the value of the assers

recoverable amount. to provide for any further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify Axed assets and long term liabilities g

assets and liabilities

e I | cniow . g | S
\s explained in Note 22, the Society has a signilicant potential liability for repairing obligations in connection with the Regent's Par

he Society is in negotiation with the Department of the Environment concerning this matter. At this time it is not possible to dete

ultimate outcome, and hence the cost, if any, which should be provided

Subject to the above, and the adjustments which might be necessary if the outcome of the uncertainties referred to above had beet

in our opinion the inancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs at 315t March 1992 and of the excess ol eX|

over income and cash flows of the Society for the vear ended on that date

IH\'-H'! '..l';- lll.‘ II. H-'.l'l: II|':“ iI'III'I|I I|':| LIS |I':I.I|I.I"|II..|.:||I. 1.||a_.f|.': F
London
1 3th July. 1992

Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

ihi

[T

idi

e

4]

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Comvention

||‘||-" ||I|:|||I- :':Il statements are |=r|'|*:||'u;i. IEI'IIjl:"' |Ir||' h:'u‘ll."'.'il_ ||! COSE CONYen oo S8 i &80 |"':'||-I||| e W |:!'| I|:|i'.|:I ..II"l'.' aCcouniine siarn

Chrerreepes im A rrting M licies

The Society changed its accounting policy for fixed assets and depreciation to that stated below from January 1984, Freehold |
buildings acquired prior to December 19583 are fully depreciated: other buildings. plant. vehicles and fittings and furnishing
written off in the year of purchase.

Basis of Financial Statements

'he financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, subsequent to the vear end, the Council has decided |
existing levels ol Operalions can no |l!||'=.' r be sustained and intends to ||-.||||-.I.-_|-:' or curiail -._-;_l|||||.';|||||1,' some ol its present actiy

that end. Council announced on 17th Junme, 1992 that London Yoo would close at the end ol September 1992

Consoliclal ion

The financial statements consolidate the results and the assets and liabilities ol Yoo Operations Limited, a whollv owned =ul
which manages the activities of the Zoological Gardens at London Zoo and W hipsnade Wild Animal Park; activities formerl
out by the Society itsell, and the assets and liabilities of Whipsnade Wild Animal Park Limited. a wholly owned subsidiary whicl
dormant and which owned and managed the Steam Railway at Whipsnade Wild Animal Park.

Form of Accounts
lhe Society maintains a number of internal funds earmarked by the Society itself for specific purposes. These designated funds

(i} Endowment Fund: This fund was created from a grant received from the Department of the Environment, The capital and!
are available to help pay for the upkeep, improvement and management of the Zool, wrical Gardens at London Zoo and Whi

Wild Animal Park.

lii) Development Fund: This fund relates to expenditure incurred on new buildings. the restoration of existing buildings and ¢!
to the infrastructure of the Society s properties carried out to improve the facilities available to the animals and to the men
the public. It is financed from donations and grants received from the public which in certain circumstances have been mate!

grants from the Government.

TR ':JI.I"IL'F:'-I.'ﬁ#I!iI:l'lj lunds: These have been given or bequeathed to the Society to be used in accordance with resolutions pas
the Council of the Society. Both the capital and the income may be spent. Until they are spent, the funds are invested in s

shares and deposits.

(£}

(B!

(il

19
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I =

(1)

gl

ihi

1!

(Kl

il

{iv) Building and Equipment Fund: The fund comprises grants received and appropriations from the General Fund which are wholly
invested in tangible assets and which are released back to revenue over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by L“'l.i'llé;l
annual amounts.

vt Ceneral Fund: The General Fund is the free fund of the society. It has to provide for the maintenance, improvement and

i

management of the Institute of Zoology. Publications, Library and membership administration as well as for the Society's
requirement for working capital

|I':! SLrECI IIJ |I il-l'-'lll.\"
Restricted funds of the Society which have conditions attached to their use are not included in the balance sheet. Details of these are set
put in Mote 200,
Ceranls
Government grants received of a revenue nature are credited to the General Fund in the year in which they are received. Grants
received of a capital nature are credited to the Revenue Account and then appropriated to the appropriate designated fund and are
released to revenue over the expected useful life of the relevant assets by equal annual amounts.
Fived Assets amd Depreciation
Fixed assets acquired by purchase or gilt during the yvear are shown at cost or valuation depreciated on a straight line basis at rates
appropriate to write off the cost over their expected useful lives. Frechold and leaschold buildings are depreciated over a range of 1 to 30
years: plant and equipment 3 to 15 years and motor vehicles 5 years.
imvestments and Investment Income
Listed investments are included in the balance sheet at cost less diminution for permanent decline in value, Dividends and interest are
accounted for when the cash is received. The amount shown includes the related tax credits which, because of the Society’s charitable
status, are recoverable, Interest on bank deposits is accounted for on an accruals basis.,
ST IE N
Stocks are stated at the lower of direct cost and net realisable value with the following exceptions: no value is placed on the animals,
farm and garden stocks and the library; stocks of scientific publications are included at nominal valuation.
Ferisniog Lol

he cost of providing pension benefits is charged to the revenue account over the period benefiting from employees’ services.
Leasing Comumitments

\ssets obtained under finance leases are capitalised in the balance sheet and are depreciated over their useful lives. The interest element
of the rental obligations is charged to the revenue account over the period of the lease and represents a constant proportion of the

balance of capital repayments outstanding.

B3
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<. DETAILED CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 1992

&

14992

Surplus

Note [ncome Expenditure Deficit
01 e O " 'O W ||'|.|_1'I
foological Gardens : Al
London Yoo Zla) g 9. 3410 1,215) i
Whipsnade Park Ial 1 18 L 051 (5 ."_.4
LA

scientihe L
Institute of Zoology 2ihi e XX, ¥ GBS L l'_i
Publications 2ed 13 148 =y L
Librar 2idy : a4 :I : (M
Learned S THA i 13 1 4401 -

Less:

Scientific Fund :""ri“
fransier to l.'
Institute of Zoologs e -

B s P

Investment charpes

F'otals of Income and Expenditure 1 2 hid 1.1 8 T
A ] ¥ LN |

— G

Operating deficit for the vear 3,954 P
] | 1 'I

I

(Det

(g
Dep:
Rele
Rele
Rele

{Def

hd




3 {a) Foological Gardens

[ncodm:

Admission of visitors
Educational visils
Admission of cars to Park
Car Parking at Zoo
Catering and Shops
Lifewatch scheme
Consultancy

(Rher

Expenditure

Linsd [ eonds sold
Sl costs
Provisions

L

i (20 r I - | . .
Income from animal adoption scheme

II-".' RS

Gardening and Grounds

Htilities and other overheads

Publicity and advertising
H:I 4 ] M ienance
Administration

e preciation

MNote | 992
£ s

3.7 14

153

| /L)

2f 3.802
104

| K

1hd

..-—
) [ S £

London foo
[991]
LW M s

3. 863
LYY

35

|.647
b, 2 HY
34 3

.ll".

1 W o
R s e

[
LT i DG
—
i T |

1992

£ s

l.558
53
Il.’l
1.170
Fit

STATEMENTS

Whipsnade Park
1991

£, O

1.351
41
14|

L. 11%

¥

1033

9.138 9,907 4,044 1,821
{Deficit ) in Subsidiary company (1001 3) (1.795) (86 ] (954)
tRerheads 1|53 . 1
epreciation fhY bl s rE L 2R
Réle:xse from Endowment Fund {234 (1018} B {F))
Release from Development Fund (338 (626) { LO6G) (112)
i ; P , o
Release from Building & Equipment Fund (45) {200} {24 (20)
(Deficit) in Society (202) (102) (12) (11)
Uperating (Deficit) (1,215) (1.897) (B73) (950

h5
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ib) Institute of Zoology

sCience
£000%
Income
Fees 17
Transfer from Scientific Fund
{MNote 18|
Lrants
Specific projects .
N LY
Expenditure
Staff costs 125
(hverheads -4
Administration 2
Depreciation i
Release from Building
& Equipment Fund
443
Uperating { Deficit) {334)
Lovernment Grant 16
i Deticit) (28]

ic) Publications
lourmal
of Zoology,
Symposia

L LW MIs
Income
Sales L
Expenditure
Staff costs i)
Overheads 13
Printing | 25
Administration 13
241
Uperating Surplus/{ Deficit) fy
e

International Zoo Yearbook: Fived costs are written off
in which each volume is published.

Veterinary

Wellcome

[aboratories

L OCs

"Ry

_Il'lrl

International

o0 Yearbook

LM M s

in the vear in which they are incurred. |
Une volume was published in 1991/92 (1990 9]

""\IJ”:Il.'ll.i

Laboratores

L O00s

_.-"||.||.|__:|| al
Record and

Soormene o

W

L,

IMoial

£ 000

1'-_|'-| |}

['otaal

LW

321

IF:"l

— ki
5

‘aper and printing costs are charged in the s
two volumes published).

il

[

ExXp

e

U

In |

(I




(dl Library
fgome

Eypenditure
mtall cosls

[verheads

Administraticn

(perating  Deticit

el Learned Societly

Income

AMembers subscriptions and lees

Ponations

SV POSILET

Expenditure

olall COsLs

SYIMPOSILIMm Cosls

" e
{verheads

Investment charges transferred to
Scientihe Fund

wministration

Uperating Surplus

In prior vears, investment charges relating to the Scientific Fund investments were charged to the Learned Society. From

i ve been charge

th Catering and Shops

The turnover and net contribution to the Society from Catering and Shops were as follows:

SURNOVER
Catering

"';|I:|||_-.

SNTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY

i-i:!-!_'r'|||;_|_l'
shiops

London

Jion
£ s

2.337%
1.465%

3.8()2
164
475

hadd

Whipsnade
Park

£ 0005

Fif 7
=ILE

1.171)

1992

Total

£ 000s

3 004
l . Yhak

4,492

London
i

£ 0005

T |

RS £
I

b
_
-

175
132

s L0

e L
00
|

-

¥
19

1008

b

W

143

the Scientific Fund. The transfer of £29.327 to the Scientific Fund is in respect of prior years charges.

Whipsnade

Park

£ 000s

i

1.119

HoA Mo 1|
ATEMENTS

155
£ (W=

3

116

(114}

1) 3
|49

Fod
1
| g

LE
=

1991 /92 they

199]
Total

L O00s

3,006/
|.840

4,907

371
dh7

e
et
o

f
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| 942

£ 0000

3. OPERATING DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

Crperating deficit is stated after chareine the [ollowing items:

Auditors remuneration

e preciation of fixed assets 142
Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets Bdh)
T

Consultancy fees
Bank Interest pavable

Finance charges on leased assets

No provision has been made for taxation on consultancy income received from abroad

L} = N R 4 o] F . % - '] I
he Society does not believe there to be g lishility to overseas taxation

4. STAFF COSTS y

Salaries and wages

Social security costs H
Uther pension costs 145
7 M
Fhes a Ll A week v number --'|.'|||[I:-='-.|'!'“~ during
the year was made up as follows
Full Part Full
e Timne lime
Zoolop Garde | 1 oo -
Bl al Gardens London Zos | iy 1 | L4
Whipsnade Park 55 ' g8
[nstitute of Zooloey ril- 7
: B =5 ]
T 2 - FE
Publications
Y =
Library ' i
|.:'-:|II'-.'|,| Societ, |
; 1
\dministration )
y ¥ i}
35 753 114

3. INCOMEFROM INVESTMENTS 1992

Listed investments - ”I!:?h :
Permanent diminution in value of investment 3. 2
Ll
LE ]
= —
b. INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Bank deposits
-“”l

£+ GOVERNMENT GRANT
Hevenue grant was received as follows:

For Institute of %o ||.,:;_l'1,'

| .463 ]38




g CURTAILMENT COSTS

A Brovision has heen made for the estimated costs that would

arise on the closure of London Zoo. The amount includes provision

for statutory redundancy payvments, and liabilities lor the carly

[erm it Of contracts

Provision for permanent diminution in value of fixed assets

af | -||'l.||||'. :-"I'\-"'l'

Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets

g TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Freehold
land and

buildings

LOO00s

Lo(hs]
At 3 st March 1991 20053
“archased during the vear 22
hsposals {46
At 1 1st March 149492 2,255
Depreciation
At 1 lst March 1991 A TT
Charge for the vear 1Y
Fermanent -_|'|I|'|'I|‘.|-.-!' in value
|'||'\-||!- -'\-\..|:'\-\. ! '!.!
At A 1st March 1992 2491
Net book I.:|"|;-E'
- AW oAlst March 1992 | RS
w315t March 1991 1.7 16

Wcluded in additions during the year is £495,503 (1990/91

&l 753.502) incurred by the Development Fund

W, INVESTMENTS

Investments at cost, less provision

Vuoted investments

Market valuation at 31st March 1992

these investments are attributed to;
acientific Fund
Fantham Beqguest

LShort
easehold

buildings

£ (uls

——
1

ol by |

e

Plant and

equipment
£ 0008

2 k2

Ly

_' > b |

ThM

e A

=1

_,
¥
sen

:
ol
e
s

viotor

vehicles

t(is

)
]|

T e |

79

114

£1.053.574) incurred by the Endowment Fund and L

| 942

£ 1 Whs

e |
| ] b

plant
0005

91

'.gl

_:'Fl.

}l.j'._l_"
i olls

1.0003

1.180
23
1.2005

1991

£ 0s

l'otal

(s

LS4

1), 1 hts

B9 20

TPt e R L TR B

| 99|

£ 0 s

932

1.261



TO0D0LOLGILUC A
'Y OF LMD

1. STOCKS 1992
000
Raw materials and consumables 128
Finished goods and goods for resale 118
544 iy
12. DEBTQORS
Trade 2113
VAT
Uither debbors =TS
Prepavments and accrued income 111
4 )
3. CREDITORS: amounis |"=||Jin§: diue within one vear
Iravcle i 4
val }
PAYE and National Insurance contributions 152
(ther creditors 115
‘eoruals and deferred income 532
Curtailment Costs (see Note 8 AT,
i1 1R
. L) 5
14.  CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one vear
Finance lease obligations s

15. FUNDS

[he Society ha signated five main | -
society has designated five main funds in order to present more clearly the substantial inflows of funds received for o

105,

development purposes and from the Government

Pl

17




FIMANCITA
STATEMENTS
1 ENDOWMENT FUND 1992 1991
£ 000s £ (s
Ralance at 315t March 1991 5,592 7098
tolease of Grants lor |:'||1I':'|'|.|'-.:I'|'r'_ hxed assets (327) [ 1RE)
— felease of Grants lor permanent diminution in value
of fixed assels al London Yoo (RT70)
Grants for purchasing lixed assets 317 200
[nterest receivable 154 (R
eficit on Zoo Operations | td [1.784) (2.9964)
ansfer to Development Fund (1)
: - "3
ransfer to General Fund = (123}
testructuring Costs (239
wriallment Costs (see Mote K (1.1100)
3 i
— Jeing appropriation (to) Revenue Account (3.263) (2.238)
1 =i = i
Jalance at 31st March 1992 1.132 5.59.
17. DEVELOPMENT FUND g
Balance at 31st March 1991 1,618 3,705
5 i + A4 _1"'\-\.
telease of Grants for purchasing hixed assets {445 [/ 58]
telease of Grants for permanent diminution in value
: i 4513
— of fixed assets at London Zoo (2.453)
" : "'
Grants for purchasing fixed assets 25 }l_{
i i 3}
Interest receivable
Iransfer from Endowment Fund | g
2 : : : 3 (1181
Iransfer to General Fund {32 =
. . y is [h i if
—— ransfer (to)/from Building & Equipment Fund (10) i
e 1€ 651
Being appropriation from/(to) Revenue Locount (1] -
i1 IhlH
Balance at 31st March 1992 '
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|8. OTHER DESIGNATED FUNDS

Lord
Staff Zuckerman
Fantham Scientine Composition Benevalent Bursar
Begquest Fund Fund Fund Fund
£'000s £ (00s L0005 L (MI)s L0
= . .
Balance at 31st March 1991 | 3 1.032 i3 . ] .
Investment income | b Lh ] I
surplus on sale of investments fl
lransfer to Institute of Zoology
(Note 2{b)) 77)
[nvestment charges
INote Xiel {35
Being appropriation from
Revenue Account I by
Balance at 3 1st March 1992 | 4 | .040) 13 } | 3

The Investment Charges include £29.327 in respect of prior yvears charges previously a ¢ harge on the General Fund

1Y9. BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT FUND 1992
LMz |

Balance at 3 1st March 1991 4494

Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets (74)

Release of Grants for permanent diminution in value

ol lixed assets at London Zoo (430

11

Iranster from Development Fund 10}

Transler to General Fund i109)

Being appropriation (to) Revenue Account {99)

Balance at 3 1st March 1992 34

200,  RESTRICTED FUNDS
(al De Arrovave Fund
The capital of the fund is held by the Official Custodian for Charities. The net inc ome was £L23.856,

ib) Davis Fund

4.

Ihe capital of the fund is held in trust by the Society but is no included on the balance sheet, The income from the fund was £

21. PENSION SCHEMES
Fhe Society participates in several Pension Schemes and employees join the appropriate scheme, d:-;u-m[:n;z on their employn
terms. The total pension cost of the Society was £444.567(1990)/9] L401] .58,

(al Universities Superannuation Scheme: This is a defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and contracted out of the 3
Earnings-Related Pension Scheme. The Fund is valued every three vears by a prof
the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution pavable be
the intervening vears, the actuary reviews the progress of the Sche
the actuary, based on the latest actuarial valuation of the S¢

ssionally qualified independent actuary
ing determined by the trustee on the advice of the actuar
‘me. Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the adv

“heme, and are accounted for on the hasis of charging the cosl
providing pensions over the period during which the Society benefits from the
to recognise deficiencies over a shorter period,
working lifetime of Members of the Scheme

employees’ services, Unless it is considered pru
variations rom regular cost are spread over the expected average remal
alter making suitable allowances for future withdrawals.

The Scheme provides benefits based on final pensionable sal
as the Society. The assets of the Scheme are held in

ary for employees of all UK universities and some other employerss
d separate trustee-administered fund.




21,

The latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme was at 3 1st March 1990, The main actuarial assumptions were an investment return
of 81% per annum, salary scale increases of 65% per annum and that pensions would increase by 5% per annum.

AL the date of the last actuarial valuation, the market value of the assets of the Scheme was £5.4 74 million and the actuarial value
of the assets was suflicient to cover 90% of the benefits which had accrued to Members after allowing for the effect of future
increases in their earnings. The level of contributions paid by the Society takes into account this actuarial deliciency.

(bl The Zoological Society Pension Fund and the Zoological Society 1988 Pension Scheme (together ‘the Fund'): the Society’s own
self-administered occupational pension Fund is a non-contributory defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and is not
contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme. The Fund is valued every three years by a professionally qualified
independent actuary using the attained age method. The Actuary confirms annually, based on a detailed knowledge of the affairs
of the Fund, that the conclusions reached at the last valuation date have not substantially altered. Payments made to the Fund and
charged in these financial statements are based upon actuarial advice. The assets of the Fund are held in separate trustee-
administered lunds.

lhe latest actuarial valuation of the Fund was at 30th June 1990, The main actuarial assumptions are an investment return of 9%
per annum, salary increases wioild aver age /% per annum and that pensions would increase h].' 4.5% per annum.

Al the date of the latest actuarial valuation the market value of the assets was £7.3 million and the actuarial value of the assets
exceeded the benefits that had accrued to members by 26%, alter allowing for the effect of [uture increases in their earnings.
Improvements to benefits have been made which have the effect of reducing the over-provision to a level acceptable to the Inland
mevenLe,

In recent vears, the Society has formed subsidiary companies to carry out its trading functions. Under the terms of the Trust Deed of
the Zoological Society Pension Fund, they cannot participate as employers. To overcome this the Zoological Society 1988 Pension
Scheme was established from 2nd October 1988 after which all eligible new staff have joined this scheme. The terms, conditions,
scale of contributions, and benelits are identical to those of the Zoological Society Pension Fund. Council is of the opinion that the
funding requirements of this new scheme are similar to those of the earlier scheme. On 29th June 1992 the Zoological Society
Pension Fund was wound up and, with the sanction of the Inland Revenue, the assets and liabilities were translerred to the
Managing Trustees of the Zoological Societv 1988 Pension Scheme,

In the opinion of Council, on the recent advice of their actuaries, the present level of funding is adequate.

\L the present time the impact of the curtailment of part of the Regent's Park area on the Zoological Society 1988 Pension Scheme
has not been determined

¢l Department of Education and Science: The Society contributes for one person to a pension scheme administered through the
Department of Education and Science, for teachers employed by the Society during their period of service.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 1992 1991

£ 000s £ 000s
Expenditure contracted 217
Authorised but not vet contracted o 29

No provisions have been made for the significant potential liability estimated at £15 million for repairing obligations in connection with
the Regent's Park lease. The Council has been informed that no obligation will pertain over certain buildings where operations are
curtailed. and for which the lease is not renewed. Discussions continue with the Department of the Environment concerning the
remaining potential obligations which are estimated at £2.5 million.

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
NEl amount ['ld!."ﬁl_‘\l{"

Mexl Vedr 12 L3
. |

In the second to fifth vears 1 =b

24 41
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24, RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit for the vear after exceptional ems
Investment income

Interest received

Provision for curtailment costs

Decrease in deblors

Lecrease in creditors

(Increase)/decrease in stocks

Interest element of Ainance leases

Bank interest paid

(Surplus)/deficit on sale of assets

Depreciation

Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets

~et cash outllow from operating activities

25. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR
Balance at 1st April
Met cash outflow

Balance at 3 1st March (See note 26|

26.  ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AS SHOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEFT

Cash at bank and in hand

Balance at 1st April 199 ]
Cash outflows from financing
Frovision for curtailment costs
Deficit in Zoo Operations Ltd

Release of Grants for purchasing fixed assets

Balance at 31st March 1992

48. STATUS OF THE SOCIETY

[he Society is incorporated by Roval Ch

27.  ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURIMNG THE YEAR

arter and is a registered charity. No. 208728, It is
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EB(]-UPEHEI’I(]NS LIMITED

AINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 1st March 1992

DIRECTORS' REPORT
the directors submit their report and tinancial statements for the year ended 3 1st March 199 2.

gesults and Review of the Business
fhe Company carries out the trading lunctions of the Zoological Society of London of which it is a wholly owned subsidiary. In particular it
manages. under licence from the Society, the London Zoo and Whipsnade Wild Animal Park.

the Society announced on 17th June 1992 that London Zoo would close at the end of September 1992, The number of visitors projected to
sme to the Zoo in the new financial year had fallen significantly below target. With insufficient reserves to sustain further losses and in
arder not to jeopardise the Society s ability to continue w ith its other operations, this decision was taken.

Mreciors and their Interests
e directors of the Company at 31st March 1992 were as follows:

N - FXECLUTTV EXECUTIVE

PHolwell (Chairman) — Appointed bth June 14991 L. D Corp

SiF Barry Cross A M C Elischer — Resigned 30th April 1992
ol A P F Flint Al C Forbes

M ' Herbert A 'Y Grant — Resigned 30th September 1991
Mol P A Jewell = Appointed 29th October 1991 Miss A Horsman = Resigned 10th April 1992
[N Knowles D M Jones — Resigned 30th April 1992

lord McAlpine of West Green — Resigned 10th July 1991
(| Perrin = Appointed 29th October 19491

ftHon Lord Pevton of Yeovil — Resigned 10th July 19491
aif Allred Sheppard - Resigned 15th April 19491

] Wheater — Appointed 1 1th February 1992

%0 director has any beneficial interest in the shares of the Company

ring the vear the Company acquired insurance cover for its directors against liabilities incurred whilst acting in their capacity as officers

ilthe Company.

crease in share capital

{ Duris g the vear calls on the part paid shares were made totalling £ 3,550,000,

I‘--IT“=|I|I|:I.1,"|,':-.
e company gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment made by disabled persons, having regard to their particular
dptitudes and abilities.

th ‘company provides its employvees and their unions with inlormation, on a regular basis, on matters of concern to them as employees.

Auditors
Aresolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors will be put to the members at the Annual General Meeting.

Y CHDER OF THI HORARLY

-
£ Lenton
SCRETARY

fegent’s Park
bndon

YW1 4Ry

Lith July 1992
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Report of the Auditors
IO THE MEMBERS OF 200 OPERATIONS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements on pages 77 to 86 in accordance with Auditing Standards.

) i il Tat 1 1 | o t it . o '
A5 SEAbed 1 note |Il"'. the hinancial statements .I--ll'..l.' heen ['l.'l'i"'.lll:'l:l CHl | 2OINE Concern bases on e .I"--"1.illl|"|||"' ol continued |

support irom the Zoological Society of London (‘the Society’) and in view of the curtailment of the company’s operations by the ds

close London Zoo. The appropriateness of the going concern basis is dependent on the Society’s ability to provide continued inan

and the achievement of profitable operations by the remaining activities of the company

Should the going concern basis prove to be inappropriate, adjustments would have to be made

recoverable amount, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify fixed assels and long term liabilities as

assets and liabilities

To T a uf s - - - L
subject to the appropriateness of the going concern basis, in our opinion the financia

B 4 R : i 5 [
affairs of the company at 3 1st March 1992 and of the results and cash {lows for the vear then ended and have been vravecly

]

accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
ERNST & YOUNG Chartered Accountants/ Reaistered Auditor
London

| 3th July 1992
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profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 3 1st March 1992

Year ended Year ended

Miote st March 1992 31st March 149491

{ i

¥ VLT J 11.417.852 11416647
Tarnover 2 g SRS .
Ot of activities 12,592,272 13,750,419
e bt On awchivines ! ||_I:|_:I||| |:,::::!l,_.'!-t'
-lldl. e T | 0 L0 Sl e e ] a e s e A |._| ||-'|I'ﬂ'.'l_: 1:"':

(1.873.3

et

,
Operating 055 lor the ver .
: )i 2

Il sl '_|'|'-_.|:'||' &8 I-":Ih

i

L= [or the year (1.783.679) (2.996.24.2)
L o 1 el e i
| .|.|:|'||||'|_- .|._| '.__IH_:_I'.“.Iil I‘Il""l.- '||'-|:
s (ARl IR
ried lorward £(9.267.670) Li7.483.9491)

E——

he notes on pages 80 to 86 form part of the inancial statements




Balance Sheet
as at 3 1st March 1992

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Investment i subsidiary

Lurrent asseis
Stocks
Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due
within one vear
Met current asseis (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due
alter more than one vear

Capital and Reserves
Called up share capital

Retained Loss

\pproved by the Board on 13th July 1992

F HOLWELI
LDCORP

Directors

Pt

1€ notes on pages 801 to 86 form p:

""H:I[I'

&

i

irt of the hnancial statements.

345, 3.2(0)
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Cash Flow Statement
for the vear ended 3 1st March 1992

Maote
vl cash outflow from operaling activities 17
L3 geturns on investments and servicing of finance

]||'.':': oL Moy |'I'|.:'l.|

Fnance lease interest and charges

Bank interest paid

Wl cash inflow Irom relurns on investments

ani servicing of finance
Investing activities
Pisnasal of Fixed Assels
Purchase of Fixed Assets
%l cash outflow from investing activities
el cash outflow before financing
fmancing
Lalls made on partly paid Share Capital
{lepayments of borrowings
Frincipal repavments of finance lease obligations
Nl cash inflow from financing
Hlecrease ) increase in cash and

tash equivalents 19

e notes on pages 80 to 86 form part of the inancial statements.

ke AT B
(3.297)

(1.355)

3. 850,000

(348 (b
(8.1313)

19592
L.

(3,625,438

84,996

(2449.618)

{ 4. 79000060

3.5003.867

286,193

I
g

oA NMLOCI AL

|
FIATEMENTS

1991
i

(1,335,104

133,172)

133.172)

(1.43%.511)

2,350,000
192, 100)
(6.499)
2.151.40]

£711.590

79
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FE 2

at 31st March 1992

1=

(b

f5 §]

\CCOUNTING POLICIES

locouniimg comeniion

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in ac
Rasis of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis as The 7 ological Society of London has indicated

will continue to provide financial support to tl

London Lo,

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed as=ets are shown at cost. or valuation w here -.'|-.'|..|I.a'i|'-!.'|| by g, and are '.|I.'|"I'!'- iated on a stratghl line basis at rates dpprop
- A " ) ) I e e .

write off their cost or valuation over their expected uselul lives. These rates are as follows

Plant and equipment

vWotor vehicles

iy [."'\-

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost isdefined as the

basis.

Penzion Cosis

The cost of providing pension benefits is "I::”'r'-"‘l to the profit and loss account over the per iond benefiting Irom emplovee s sery

Leasing Commuitments

Assets obtained under finance leases .II'{':':|;1II:||:*-.|'|! in the balance sheet and are deprec igted over their uselul lives. The interest e
of the rental obligations is charged to the profit and loss account over the period ol the lease and represents a constant proporti

balance of capital repayments outstanding

TURMNOVER

Turnover comprises amounts receivable from the admission of visitors. from educational visits, donations, and from services su

(stated net of value added tax)

vdmission of visitors
Educational visits
Admission of cars to Park
Car Parking at Zoo
Catering (see MNote 2(b))
Shops

Animal adoption scheme
Litewatch scheme
Consultancy

(Other

Income relating to the catering joint venture at the Regent's Park site has this vear been disclosed gross.

been restated accordingly.
Catering Concession
Turnover - London Zoo

Contribution to Company

ordance with applicable accounting sta

e company and, as stated in Note 21 to the financial statements, has decided

sinal purchase cost determine

The 1991 comparativ

London Yoo L1169, 152
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214,275

A00L.0000

Nil
Ml

4,345,952
126,538

142,251

£5.194.741

OPERATING LOSS FOR THE YEAR 19492
k
8 Operating Loss is stated after charging
e following items
Hrectors remuneration (sec Note 3ibl) 312 D98
L _|i|l H g ey neration ¥ (3]
. Epreciaion of hixed assets 1457 8B&H1
msultancy lees 3 3.097
ink interest pavable 1.355
imance charges on leased assets 3,297
sts incurred refating to the restructuring of the Company have been borne by the Zoological Society of London
rectors remuneration
+ g
ther emoluments (including pension
miribitions and benefits in kind) JET 195
mpensdation lor loss of ofhce ARRERTH]
Lal2us
noluments of the Chairman (excluding pension
Vi gntributions) (see below) il
molumenis of the ||I:,_'|||,'-I paid director
r excluding pension contributions) L6l.715
= the non-executive directors including the Chairman and
e execulive director do nol receive emoluments orF fees,
W emoluments of the directors fell within the following ranges:
=1 5 (MK | 1
301 =L 200, 0400) il
R £25.001-£ 30.000 Nil
.00 1= 35,000 |
33,001 =L, 000 il
L R TR I
il A5.001-L50.000 il
| SOL001-L55.000) ]
1¢ L3500 1 =L/0,000 l
= AL ] —£ &S 000) |
[ i
2 31 STAFF COSTS
i 1]
¥ 11 salaries and wagpes }. 395,855
157, docial security costs 432,884
=) VIner pension cosks 277983
42
L5.306.727
_.|.||

—— 'he average weekly number of employees
rativd Wuring the yvear was made up as follows;
Full Part

Tirme Time
411 : X -

London Yoo 156 30

|—'_'| 5 L = )

175 Whipsnade Wild Animal Park =3 23
c

~ wdministration 25 2
e —

2bha il

Full Fart
[ime Time
| Yy i
B ]
29 I
323 Fi

\dministration stafl also service the Company’'s parent. the Zoological Society of London

s



DOPERATIOMNS

I k& 1
5. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 9,
Plant and Motor Leased
Equipment Vehicles Plant
Cosl I L 8
At 315t March 1991 92 4945 1 35,074 13.318 Shd
Purchased during the year 214,891 4,900 219
Transferred from Society 35,0494 1
Disposals at cost (2,644) )
At 31st March 1992 hd(), 28 |42.974 13,118 21
Depreciation
At 31st March 1991 143,302 49 571 b, 663 | 5
Charge for the year 112,605 28,593 b,66 3 147
Transferred from Society 3,152 REE|
Disposals (524
At 31st March 1992 258.530 T8 464 13.326 I8
Net Book Value
At 31st March 1992 Lisl, /56 LH4,.510 £L19.992 I 13T
At 31st March 1991 249,643 L58.203 L26,655 Li64
h. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY 1992
Zoo Bestaurants Limited (UK 1

Zoo Restaurants Limited is dormant. The Company has not prepared consolidated accounts because in the opinion of the d
consolidated accounts would not be |:ml-:'|'1¢1||_'.' different from those ol rhr'l'nlllp;lrlj. ;

7. STOCKS

Equipment spares 29 416 (14
Consumables 292013 .
Food 18.367 : i
For resale 195 314 14 |
£545,320 L5
8. DEBTORS
The Zoological Society of London 174.676
Trade debtors 213.195 134
Other debtors 55052 58
Prepayments and accrued income 93.115
£536,038 L34




1t

(REDITORS 1992 199]
f L

ymounts falling due within one yvear:
The Zoological Society of London 1.353.250
A |‘|;1'-Ilill.11' Wild Animal Park Lid 197.131 o
Irade creditors 193,264 939,518
(ither creditors d8.h22 449 240)
\ceruals 175,846 539,167
PAYE and National Insurance contributions 107.397 142,270
VAT 82,875 10,243
£1.005,135 £3.023,688

CREDITORS
Amounts alling due alter one vear:

Finance lease obligations 11.433 19.566
Loan stock (see below) 750000 750,000
L761.433 L769.566

[he loan stock comprises zero coupon subordinated convertible unsecured loan stock dated 2014,
Created £3.650,000 £ 5.650,.000

fssuued £ 750,000 £750.000

[he loan stock was issued to The Zoological Society of London, is non-transferable, and is subordinated in that it ranks after all other

creditors for repavment

[he loan stock is interest free, redeemable on 315t March 2014 and convertible to ordinary shares at any time (at the holder's option)
betore the redemption date. The loan stock is convertible at the rate of £1 of ordinary share capital of the company for every £1 nominal

‘“""-\.I‘-. converted,

Un Zind January 1991, £500.000 of loan stock was converted into ordinary shares of £1 each.

. SHARE CAPITAI

\uthorised
10,750,000 ordinary shares of £1 each £ 10,750,000 £ 10,750,000
lssued
350,000 ordinary shares of £1 each,
issued fully paid 350,000 350,000
200,000 ordinary shares of £1 each,
issued fully paid 500,000 500,000
3,650,000 ordinary shares of £1 each.
issued nil paid, now fully paid 3650000 3,650,000
3,300,000 ordinary shares of £1 each,
issued nil paid. now part paid 4,750,000 SO0, 000
000,000 £9.250,000 ££5,400,000
e R ————— —;

Un 13th December 1989, 3,650,000 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £3,6 50,000 were issued, nil paid. Calls were
Made in settlement of indebtedness of equal amounts to the Zoological Society of London of £2,200,000; £400.000: £300.0(K} and
L750.000 on 1 3th March 1990: 5th June 1990: 3rd July 1990 and 22nd January 1991 respectively.

Un 22nd January 1991 the company increased its authorised share capital by 5,500,000 ordinary shares of £1 each.

Un 22nd January 1991 500,000 ordinary shares were issued fully paid in respect of the holder of £500,000 of loan stock.
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On 22nd January 1991 3,500,000 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £5,500.0000) were issued, nil paid. Cal

made in settlement of indebtedness of equal amounts to ¢

the Zoological Society of London of L900.000; £1.500,000: £50)

£300,000and £1,350,000 on 12th March 1991; 16th April 1991; 6th June 1991: 215t November 1991 and 11th Decembe

respectively, to ensure the continuing solvency of the Company

DIRECTORS  INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Until 30th September 1991 Mr A Y Grant, Mr L D Corp and Mr A | C Forbes were interested through their 82%, 3% and 3% reg
equity interests in Grant Leisure Group Limited, in a contract to supply managerial assistance to the company

In the terms of this contract, an amount of £55.929 (199091 - £199,441) is pavable for the vear relating to the secondn

certain staff and for the services of Mr A Y Grant.

In addition, an incentive pavment based upon performance of the company and sponsorship are pavable and lor the ve
amounted to Nil (1990,/91 — Nil)and £5.364 (1990,/91 - L2.632) respectively.

During the course of the year, the company entered into, in the ordinary course of business. several contracts with Sir Robert M

and Sons Limited; a company of which Lord McAlpine of West Green is a director and has interests. The contracts had a v
E148.154(1990/91 = £L90),1751,

PEMNSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in several Pension Schemes and employees join the appropriate scheme. depending on their employ
terms. The total pension cost of the Company was £277.983 (1990/9] - £242,251)

ihi

Universities Superannuation Scheme: This is a defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and contracted out of the ¢
Earnings-Related Pension Scheme. The Fund is valued every three years by a professionally qualitied independent actuar
the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution payable being determined by the trustees on the advice of the actus
the intervening years. the ac tuary reviews the progress of the Scheme, Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the ad
the actuary. based on the latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme. and are accounted for on the basis of charging the
providing pensions over the period during which the Company benefits from the emplovees’ services, Unless it is cons
prudent to recognise deficiencies over a shorter period. variations from regular cost are spread over the expected a

remaining working lifetime of Members of the Scheme after making suitable allowances for future withdrawals,

Ihe Scheme provides benefits based on final pensionable salary for employees of all UK universities and some other emplovers
ds the Company. The assets of the Scheme are held in a separate trustee-administered fund

lhe latest actuarial valuation of the Scheme was at 3 15t March 1990, The main actuarial assumptions were an investment i

of 53% per annum, salary scale increases of 6% per annum and that pensions would increase by 5% per annum

At the date of the last actuarial valuation, the market value of the assets of the Scheme was £5.4 74 million and the actuarial s
of the assets was sufficient to cover 90% of the benetits which had acerued to Members after allowine [or the effect of b

increases in their earnings. The level of contributions paid by the Company takes into account this actuarial deficiency

The Zoological Society Pension Fund and the Zoological Society 1988 Pensions Scheme (together ‘the Fund'): the
administered occupational pension Fund is a non-contributory defined benefit scheme which is externally funded and is
contracted out of the State |':'fl-'llll1',.’.‘-- Related Pension Scheme. The Fund is valued every three vears by a |1:'|||'|_-~._a,|.; nally gual
independent actuary using the attained age method. The Actuary confirms annually, based on a detailed knowledge of the al
of the Fund, that the conclusions reached at the last valuation date have not substantially altered. Pavments made to the Funt
charged in these financial statements are based upon actuarial advice. The assets o il e SISt
| ets of the Fund are held in separate ir
administered funds.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Fund was at 30th June 1990, The main actuarial assumptions are an investment return

per annum, salary increases would average 7% per annum and that pensions would increase by 4.5%, per annum.

Al the date of the latest actuarial valuation the market value of the assets was L7, 3 million and the actuarial value of the a®

exceeded the benefits that had accrued to members by 26%. after allowing for the effect of future increases in their earn
|I'I:I|':II! ovements to |'|-'.-|!|-:-!'I|.‘-i have been made which have the effect ol Fc'dllt'llu: :!Il:‘-:'ll'l.'l!'-pl'-:l'u.'ro.i-l n to a level ilt'l:'l.‘[1l.'l|:1|1.' to the In
Revenue.

|!.l recent years, the Zoological Society of London has formed subsidiary companies to carry out its trading functions of whicl
Company is one. Under the terms of the Trust Deed of the Zoological Society Pension Fund. the trading companies ci
]uljrl icipate as emplovers. To overcome this the Zoological Society 1988 Pension Scheme was established from 2nd October |
after which all the Company's eligible new staff have joined this Scheme., The terms, conditions. seale of contributions. and b

are identical to those of the Zoological Society Pension Fund. The Directors are of the opinion that the funding requirements o
new scheme are similar to those of the earlier scheme. On 29th June 1992 the Zoological Society Pension Fund was wound up

e ith the sanction of the Inland Revenue, the assets and liabilities were transferred to the Managing Trustees of the Zoolot
society 1985 Pension Scheme.

In the opinion of the directors, on the recent advice of their dctuaries, the present level of funding is adequate,




FINANCIAL
> 1 A TEMENTS

\t the present time the impact of the curtailment of part of the Regent's Park area on the Zoological Society 1988 Pension Scheme
has not been determined
Pepartment of kducation and Science:!The Company contributes for one person to a pension scheme administered through the

Department of Education and Science, for teachers employed by the Company during their period of service

14 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There are no contingent liabilities at 3 1st March 1992,

15 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS %0 N
: L
Expenditure contracted

Viithorisesd but not yvel contracted

1. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

et amount pavable:

exl veal hoAY% 4949
In the second to fifth vear 11.433 19.566
£17.931 L26.065

17. RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
SET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss lor the yvear (1.783.679) (2.996,242)
[nterest received (B9.645) (32.618)
[ hange in intercompany account (1.189.925) Hb 952
Inerease ) decrease in debtors (134811 74 /12
Increase /| decrease) in creditors {665, 304) Wi X
[ncrease ) /decrease in stocks (35.914) 160,011
Interest element of hinance leases s M 1,297
lank interest paid 1,355 836
lepreciation charges 147,861 112,556
Net cash outllow from operating activities Li3.625.438) £(1,335,104)

1§. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE YEAR

dalance at 1st April 187.474 (224.116)
Net cash (outllow )/ inflow (28h.193) =11.590)
Balance at 3 1st March (See note 19) £201.281 FA4R7 474

9. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS AS SHOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEET

1992 1991  Change in year

L 3 L

Cash at bank and in hand 201,281 487,474 (28A.193)

' £.201,281] L487.474 L2886, 193)
[

. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THE YEAR

Loans and hnance
Share Capital lease obligations

' £

. Balance at 1st April 1991 5,400,000 769,566
& Lash inflows/{outflows) from financing 3,850,000 (8,133)
Balance at 31st March 1992 £9,250,000 £761.433




